% o

N

YORK

CEITY QF

COUNCIL @

/

Notice of a public meeting of

Planning Committee B

To: Councillors Merrett (Chair), Cullwick (Vice-Chair),
Fenton, Moroney, Nelson, Orrell, Vassie, Warters and
Wilson

Date: Tuesday, 15 July 2025

Time: 5.00 pm

Venue: West Offices - Station Rise, York YO1 6GA

AGENDA

Apologies for Absence
To receive and note apologies for absence.

Declarations of Interest (Pages 7 - 8)
At this point in the meeting, Members and co-opted members are
asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary interest, or other
registerable interest, they might have in respect of business on
this agenda, if they have not already done so in advance on the
Register of Interests. The disclosure must include the nature of
the interest.

An interest must also be disclosed in the meeting when it
becomes apparent to the member during the meeting.

[Please see the attached sheet for further guidance for Members.]



Minutes (Pages 9 - 14)
To approve and sign the minutes of the last Planning Committee B
meeting held on 12 June 2025.

Public Participation

At this point in the meeting members of the public who have
registered to speak can do so. Members of the public may speak
on agenda items or on matters within the remit of the committee.

Please note that our registration deadlines are set as 2
working days before the meeting, in order to facilitate the
management of public participation at our meetings. The
deadline for registering at this meeting is 5:00pm on Friday, 11
July 2025.

To register to speak please visit
www.york.gov.uk/AttendCouncilMeetings to fill in an online
registration form. If you have any questions about the
registration form or the meeting, please contact Democratic
Services. Contact details can be found at the foot of this agenda.

Webcasting of Public Meetings

Please note that, subject to available resources, this meeting will
be webcast including any registered public speakers who have
given their permission. The meeting can be viewed live and on
demand at www.york.gov.uk/webcasts.

Plans List
This item invites Members to determine the following planning
applications:

RSPCA, Landing Lane, York, YO26 4RH (Pages 15 - 40)
[24/00919/FULM]

Erection of 6no. animal shelter buildings, 2no. aviaries, screen
fencing and associated alterations following demolition of existing
animal shelters. [Holgate Ward]


http://www.york.gov.uk/AttendCouncilMeetings
http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts

b)

6.

1 Museum Street, York, YO1 7DT (Pages 41 - 78)
[25/00532/LBC]

Internal and external works in conjunction with proposed use as
bookshop to include new/replacement platform lift, internal
reconfigurations to include new staircase, alterations to internal
openings and partitions, installation of shelving and other
replacement joinery, redecoration and repair works, new/replacement
plumbing and services and rainwater goods, secondary glazing and
repairs to fenestration, new/replacement flooring, mezzanine
structure and balustrade, and solar PV panels. [Guildhall Ward]

York Designer Outlet, St Nicholas Avenue, (Pages 79 - 108)
York, YO19 4TA [24/01633/FULM]

Change of use of amenity field to temporary (3 years) seasonal
(November and December) overflow car park for the use of employees
only. [Fulford and Heslington Ward]

Urgent Business
Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under the
Local Government Act 1972.

Democracy Officer:

Jane Meller

Contact details:

Telephone: (01904) 555209
Email: jane.meller@york.gov.uk

For more information about any of the following please contact the
Democratic Services Officer responsible for servicing this meeting:

Contact details are set out above.

Registering to speak

Business of the meeting

Any special arrangements

Copies of reports and

For receiving reports in other formats



mailto:jane.meller@york.gov.uk

Alternative formats

To request reasonable adjustments or to provide this document in an alternative
language or format such as large print, braille, audio, Easy Read or BSL, you can:

Email us at; cycaccessteam@york.gov.uk

Call us: 01904 551550 and customer services will pass your
request onto the Access Team.

Use our BSL Video Relay Service:
www.york.gov.uk/BSLInterpretingService

Select ‘Switchboard’ from the menu.

We can also translate into the following languages:

Pt AT MOESIRMHEEFSE (cantonese)
a3 AT AIF [NIEa SrEm (R (TS It | (Bengali)

Ta informacja moze by¢ dostarczona w twoim

wiasnym jezyku. (Polist)

Bu bilgiyi kendi dilinizde almaniz miimkiindiir. (Turkish)

R D G T, Urdu)



mailto:cycaccessteam@york.gov.uk
http://www.york.gov.uk/BSLInterpretingService

(1)

Page 5

Declarations of Interest — guidance for Members

Members must consider their interests, and act according to the

following:

Type of Interest

You must

Interests

Disclosable Pecuniary

Disclose the interest, not participate
in the discussion or vote, and leave
the meeting unless you have a
dispensation.

Other Registrable
Interests (Directly
Related)

OR

Non-Registrable
Interests (Directly
Related)

Disclose the interest; speak on the
item only if the public are also
allowed to speak, but otherwise not
participate in the discussion or vote,
and leave the meeting unless you
have a dispensation.

Other Registrable
Interests (Affects)
OR

Non-Registrable
Interests (Affects)

Disclose the interest; remain in the
meeting, participate and vote unless
the matter affects the financial
interest or well-being:

(a) to a greater extent than it affects
the financial interest or well-being of
a majority of inhabitants of the
affected ward; and

(b) a reasonable member of the
public knowing all the facts would
believe that it would affect your view
of the wider public interest.

In which case, speak on the item
only if the public are also allowed to
speak, but otherwise do not
participate in the discussion or vote,
and leave the meeting unless you
have a dispensation.

Agenda Item 2

(2) Disclosable pecuniary interests relate to the Member concerned or
their spouse/partner.

(3) Members in arrears of Council Tax by more than two months must
not vote in decisions on, or which might affect, budget calculations,



Page 6

and must disclose at the meeting that this restriction applies to
them. A failure to comply with these requirements is a criminal
offence under section 106 of the Local Government Finance Act
1992.



Page 7 Agenda Item 3

City of York Council Committee Minutes
Meeting Planning Committee B

Date 12 June 2025

Present Councillors Merrett (Chair), Cullwick (Vice-

Chair), Fenton, Moroney, Orrell, Vassie,
Warters, Baxter (Substitute) and Whitcroft
(Substitute)

Officers Present Gareth Arnold, Development Manager
Jonathan Kenyon, Principal Officer,
Development Management
Jodi Ingram, Lawyer

1. Apologies for Absence (4.33 pm)
Apologies were received and noted from Clirs Wilson and Nelson. They
were substituted by Clirs Whitcroft and Baxter respectively.

2. Declarations of Interest (4.34 pm)
Members were asked to declare at this point in the meeting any disclosable
pecuniary interests or other registrable interests that they might have in the

business on the agenda, if they had not already done so in advance on the
Register of Interests.

None were declared.

3. Minutes (4.34 pm)

Resolved: That the minutes of the last meeting held on 24 April 2025 were
approved as a correct record.

4. Public Participation (4.35 pm)

It was reported that there had been no registrations to speak at the meeting
under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme.

5. Plans List (4.35 pm)



Page 8

Members considered a schedule of reports of the Development Manager,
relating to the following planning applications, outlining the proposals and
relevant policy considerations and setting out the views of consultees and
officers.

6. 5 Main Street, Heslington, York, YO10 5EA
[24/01377/FULM] (4.35 pm)

Members considered a major full application by Miranda Lam for the
change of use of offices (use class E) to 25n0. bed purpose-built student
accommodation, erection of a single storey extension to The Hive and
associated external works.

The Development Manager gave a presentation on the plans and noted
that the application had been deferred at committee in March 2025. Since
then, the Local Plan proposal’s map had been published showing the site
to be within the university campus. Therefore, the application had been re-
appraised and considered in accordance with policy ED1 and ED2 of the
adopted Local Plan.

An update to the published report was provided by the Principal Officer,
Development Management, this covered further representations from
Heslington Parish Council and Heslington Village Trust and the officer's
response to these, further information on the reason for deferral and an
explanation of policy ED2: Campus West.

In response to questions on the plans, officers showed the location of the
pub in relation to the site, the distance was approximately seventeen
metres.

Public Speakers

David Blacketer spoke on behalf of the Parish Council in objection to the
application, stating that the 24/7 operation of the proposed student housing
would have a detrimental effect on residential amenity and the character
and setting of the conservation area. He asked the committee to refuse the
application.

In response to questions, he stated that the village was quiet at evening
and weekends, the benefit would not outweigh the harm.

Nicholas Allen spoke on behalf on the Heslington Village Trust also in
objection to the application, he stated that the site being within the



Page 9

university campus was not correct and he believed that policy EC2 applied
in this instance; the application should be judged on the loss of
employment land.

Janet O’Neill, the agent for the applicant, spoke in support of the
application. She noted the difficulties associated with working in a listed
building, which was in a poor condition. She highlighted the user rights for
university use and that a change of ownership did not remove those rights.

She responded to questions from Members and gave an indication of
demand for student accommodation, reporting that there were two students
for every student bed. It was not the intention to remove the Hive, although
its condition had worsened recently, and this would be re-evaluated in due
course.

In response to questions from Members, officers reported that the policy
referred to the proposals map and campus, the sale of the land by the
University did not affect its lawful use. It covered a range of uses including
housing, sports and education and did not rule out other use. Ownership
was not a material planning consideration. The adopted local plan has the
full weight of Planning Act behind it. It was confirmed that the number of
parking spaces would be reduced from nine to three. It was not considered
reasonable to condition the construction management plan, however the
working hours could be considered for a condition. A noise assessment
had been addressed in condition 7.

Following debate, the Chair proposed the officer recommendation to
approve the application, subject an amendment to condition 9 to specify
swift boxes and the inclusion of an additional condition concerning the
hours of demolition, construction, and deliveries to be included and an
amendment to the positive and proactive approach informative regarding
the committee’s consideration of the loss of employment use. This was
seconded by ClIr Cullwick.

On being put to a vote, with eight members in favour and one against it
was:

Resolved: That the application be approved.

Reason: In principle the scheme is regarded policy compliant. The
site is designed as part of the university campus in the
adopted Local Plan and the relevant policy ED1 advises
student housing will be permitted on campus. The
scheme also has the following benefits:



7.

Page 10

It involves re-use of what were redundant university
buildings to contribute towards meeting evidenced
student housing need, in a sustainable location. The
scheme accords with the sustainable development and
environmental objectives of the Local Plan and NPPF; the
reuse and environmental improvement of existing
buildings is aligned with the objective to minimise waste
and pollution, and mitigating and adapting to climate
change, including moving to a low carbon economy.

The proposals preserve and better reveal the significance
of a listed building and would bring it into a sustainable
new use, consistent with its conservation, improving its
environmental performance and addressing defects which
are causing the building to deteriorate. The proposals are
beneficial in respect of the impact on the listed building.
The scheme (as revised) does not harm the significance
of heritage assets.

5 Main Street, Heslington, York, YO10 5EA [24/01378/LBC]
(5.47 pm)

During consideration of item 5a, Members also considered the listed
building consent application for internal and external alterations to facilitate
change of use of offices (use class E) to purpose-built student

accommodation.

The Chair proposed the officer recommendation to approve the application,
and this was seconded by ClIr Cullwick. On being put to a vote, Members
voted eight in favour and one against. It was therefore:

Resolved:

Reason:

That the application be approved.

The scheme does not conflict with Local Plan policy D5
as no harm to significance has been identified. The
proposals are desirable in reverting the building back to
its original domestic use; it is in accordance with NPPF
paragraph 210 which states that “in determining
applications, local planning authorities should take
account of the desirability of sustaining and enhancing the



Page 11

significance of heritage assets and putting them to viable
uses consistent with their conservation”.

The scheme has been revised to address officer concerns
in respect of impact on the original plan form. It will
address existing issues with the building in a sympathetic
way. The works to accommodate re-use, in terms of
energy efficiency and fire safety are also sympathetic.
The works adhere with NPPF paragraph 213 in that they
have clear and convincing justification. No harm to
significance has been identified and there is therefore no
conflict with NPPF policy on heritage assets. lItis
recommended consent be granted subject to conditions.

8. Planning Appeal Performance and Decisions (5.48 pm)
The Development Manager presented a report which provided information
on the planning appeal decision determined by the Planning Inspectorate
between 01 January and 31 March 2025.
Resolved: That the report be noted.
Reason: To keep members informed of the current position of planning

appeals against the council’s decisions as determined by the
Planning Inspectorate.

Clir D Merrett, Chair
[The meeting started at 4.31 pm and finished at 5.53 pm].



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 13 Agenda Item 5a
COMMITTEE REPORT

Date: 15 July 2025 Ward: Holgate

Team: West Area Parish: Holgate Planning Panel

Reference: 24/00919/FULM

Application at: RSPCA Landing Lane York YO26 4RH

For: Erection of 6no. animal shelter buildings, 2no. aviaries, screen

fencing and associated alterations following demolition of
existing animal shelters

By: Mr P Gorbet
Application Type: Major Full Application
Target Date: 18 July 2025

Recommendation: Approve

1.0 PROPOSAL

1.1 RSPCA Landing Lane Acomb comprises a low-rise brick and concrete animal
rehoming centre incorporating kennels, offices, a vet’'s surgery, offices, a dog
exercise area and RSPCA Inspector's accommodation. The site lies to the
northwest of the City Centre, adjacent to the York Water Treatment Works and in
close proximity to the River Ouse. It lies within Flood Zone 3 and is therefore felt to
be at high risk of river flooding. Planning permission is sought for reconstruction of
the complex. The proposal has been amended since submission to address
concerns in respect of the biodiversity impact of the proposals along with flood risk
and surface water drainage.

2.0 POLICY CONTEXT
DEVELOPMENT PLAN

2.1 Planning law requires that applications for planning permission must be
determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations
indicate otherwise (section 38(6) Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004).

2.2 The Statutory Development Plan for the City of York comprises the City of
York Local Plan adopted 27" February 2025 whose policies carry full weight, and
any made Neighbourhood Plan. The below policies are considered most relevant to
this application:

Application Reference Number: 24/00919/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 14

- D1 Placemaking

- GI2 Biodiversity and Access to Nature

- Gl4 Trees and Hedgerows

- ENV4 Flood Risk

- ENV5 Sustainable Drainage

- T1 Sustainable Access

- CC2 Sustainable Design and Construction

2.3 Other material considerations include:
- the National Planning Policy Framework (‘the NPPF’) December 2024
- national Planning Policy Guidance

3.0 CONSULTATIONS

INTERNAL

Highway Network Management

3.1 Raise no objection to the proposal.

Public Protection

3.2 No response.

Design and Conservation (Trees and Landscape)

3.3 Raise no objection in principle to the proposal subject to the provision of
additional and replacement on the site boundaries. Conditions covering landscaping
and tree protection measures are sought in respect of any permission.

Design and Conservation (Ecoloqy)

3.4 Raise no objections in principle to the proposal but raise some concern in
terms of how the proposal has been designed to incorporate BNG principles. The
standard BNG condition together with conditions covering a lighting plan, bird and
bat boxes and a Construction Environment Management Plan (Biodiversity) are
recommended as part of any permission.

Front Line Flood Risk Management
Application Reference Number: 24/00919/FULM Item No: 5a




Page 15

3.6 Raise no objection to the scheme as amended subject to any permission being
conditioned to require adherence to the submitted drainage strategy and to an
Environmental Permit under the relevant regulations being obtained from the
Environment Agency as the proposal envisages surface water drainage into a main
water course for which the Environment Agency is responsible for its management.

EXTERNAL

Holgate Planning Panel

3.5 Noresponse.

Ainsty (2008) Internal Drainage Board

3.6  Wish to make no comment in respect of the proposal deferring to the advice of
the Front-Line Flood Risk Management Authority and the Environment Agency as
the relevant responsible bodies.

Environment Agency

3.8 Raise no objection to the proposal as amended subject to an Environmental
Permit being obtained for the proposed surface water drainage works.

4.0 REPRESENTATIONS

4.1 One letter of support has been received in respect of the proposal.

5.0 APPRAISAL

5.1 The key issues are as follows:

- Principle of Development

- Highways and Access

- Drainage & Flood Risk

- Trees and Landscape

- Ecology

- Sustainable design and construction

PRINCIPLE OF DEVELOPMENT
Application Reference Number: 24/00919/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 16

5.2 The application site comprises a 1,220 square metre small animal re-homing
centre with an associated operational base for the RSPCA in the York Area. It was
constructed in the mid-1970s with some limited extension in the 1980s. The current
small animal accommodation falls below modern standards with the cat pens in
particular not licensable with areas decommissioned due to potential for
overcrowding and if not resolved the site may have to close in the longer term with
animals having to be transferred long distances to other facilities which may also be
under-pressure. Most animals held are rehomed after a short time span. However,
those held in conjunction with a criminal investigation can be held for up to two
years.

5.3 The proposal envisages the demolition of the existing agglomeration of
structures except for the central office, reception and Inspector's accommodation.
The existing buildings would be replaced with a building some 645 square metres
larger that would include 2 aviaries, a detached veterinary surgery and isolation unit
together with enhanced dog and cat provision in terms of space and design and a
small animal unit. The overall number of dogs kept on site would be reduced with
some relocated to fostering and to other sites. The dog provision would include
separate accommodation for puppies and adult dogs including indoor training
facilities to complement the existing outdoor facility. In terms of the cat
accommodation a separate reception area would be provided where potential
adopters can meet cats separate from the main cattery. The existing veterinary
facility within the main reception building would be repurposed to provide enhanced
staff accommodation, a shop for use by pet adopters and a donations centre. The
isolation unit would be capable of use by cats or dogs receiving treatment at the
adjacent veterinary centre.

5.4 The proposal secures the long-term future of the site and the services it
provides at a time of increased pressure. The submitted details record the attempts
of the RSPCA to find alternatives sites to build a new purpose-built re-homing centre
but that has not proved feasible and being within Flood Zone 3 the development
potential of the existing site is highly limited.

5.5 Interms of compliance with Policy D1 of the Adopted Local Plan the
application site is set well back from the adjoining pattern of development within its
own grounds. The new structures would be single storey and modular in form with
an external cladding. The existing area of hard surfacing would be utilised and any
increase in overall built footprint would be minimal. The density and massing of the
proposal would parallel that of the existing development and as with the current
development and layout there would not be any material impact upon the form and

Application Reference Number: 24/00919/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 17

character of the wider street scene. The requirements of Policy D1 of the Local Plan
would therefore be complied with.

HIGHWAYS AND ACCESS

5.6 Policy T1 of the Local Plan indicates that development will be supported where
it minimises the need to travel and provides safe, suitable and attractive access to
all transport users to and within it. To do so development would be needed to
demonstrate safe and appropriate access to the adjacent adopted highway and
provide sufficient convenient, secure and covered cycle storage ideally within the
curtilage of the new buildings.

5.7 The proposal envisages the demolition and reconstruction of the existing
animal holding areas together with the construction of purpose built veterinary and
associated isolation units to allow for the existing accommodation within the main
reception building to be repurposed to provide enhanced staff facilities. Access to
the site by members of the public is by appointment only and will remain so with the
level of accommodation for dogs taken in reduced. Staffing levels at the site would
remain as currently and both cycle and vehicle parking arrangements would remain
unchanged. The existing first floor RSPCA Inspector's accommodation would
remain as is. The site is accessed via Landing Lane which is very lightly trafficked
with the only other user being the adjacent Yorkshire Water Wastewater Treatment
Works. The existing pattern of deliveries would remain unchanged. The proposed
replacement buildings are of modular construction which would further minimise
construction related deliveries.

The proposal would not therefore materially harm the safety and convenience of
highway users, and the requirements of Policy T1 of the Local Plan would be
complied with.

DRAINAGE AND FLOOD RISK

5.8 Policy ENV4 of the Local Plan indicates that new development should not be
subject to unacceptable flood risk and shall be designed and constructed in such a
way that mitigates against current and future flood events. An assessment of
whether development is likely to be affected by flooding and whether it would
increase flood risk locally and elsewhere in the catchment must be undertaken.
Where flood risk is present development will only be permitted when the local
planning authority is satisfied that any flood risk within the catchment can be
successfully managed and there are details of proposed mitigation measures.

Application Reference Number: 24/00919/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 18

5.9 The application site lies within Flood Zone 3 being in close proximity to the
bank of the River Ouse with partial flooding of the adjoining waterworks site
common during wider flooding events. The site itself has not been subject to a
significant flooding event in recent times although the external dog training and
exercise area does flood and is rendered unusable periodically during wider flooding
events. As a consequence of its high flood risk category the site is not suitable for
more vulnerable employment or residential use which has informed the decision of
the RSPCA to re-develop on site. The application has been accompanied by a Site-
Specific Flood Risk Assessment which has been amended during the course of
process together with a flood evacuation procedure. This indicates that the site may
be satisfactorily evacuated to the rear via Landing Lane and Water Lane in the
event of a serious flooding event which is defined as the River Ouse reaching
10.95.metres AOD or above. The site would at the same time be re-constructed to
be flood resilient in terms of the new blocks.

5.10 In terms of the vulnerability of the site to flooding a small animal rehoming
centre does not sit within any use class but is considered to fit more closely with the
business type uses within the less vulnerable category. The new buildings would
take place within existing areas of hard surfacing and pre-development levels would
be retained across the site including in respect of the external dog training area.
With the new building there would be no change in the flood vulnerability
classification. With no change to existing flood storage there would be no impact
upon flood risk locally from the proposal or in terms of the wider catchment. The
requirements of Local Plan Policy ENV4 would therefore be complied with.

5.11 Policy ENV5 of the Local Plan indicates that for development on brownfield
sites surface water runoff should be restricted to 70% of the existing run off rate
unless it may be demonstrated that it is not reasonably practicable to achieve such a
reduction. Sufficient attenuation and long-term storage should be provided to ensure
that surface water flow does not exceed the restricted run off rate. Such attenuation
measures must accommodate run off from at least a 1 in 30-year storm and any
runoff from a 1 in 100-year storm must be capable of being accommodated within
the site without harm to people or property or overflowing into adjoining areas.

5.12 A detailed drainage strategy has been submitted and has been the subject of
amendment during the course of processing. This shows an area of attenuation to
the northwest of the site beneath the existing dog exercise/training area. That then
connects with the Holgate Beck by means of an existing connection which would be
upgraded, further to the northwest in the vicinity of the former York Water Works
with an agreed discharge rate of 13.1 litres per second.

Application Reference Number: 24/00919/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 19

5.13 Itis felt that the proposed flood risk measures and submitted drainage strategy
are acceptable and would secure compliance with Policies ENV4 and ENV5 of the
Local Plan. Because of the relationship of the site to the Ouse riverbank it would
separately require an Environmental Permit from the Environment Agency under the
Environmental Permitting Regulations (England and Wales) 2016.

TREES AND LANDSCAPE

5.14 Policy Gl4 of the Local Plan indicates that development will be supported
where it retains trees and hedgerows that make a positive contribution to the setting
of the development and are of value to general public amenity in terms of visual
benefits, shading and screening. The boundaries of the site notably that to Water
End are well landscaped but the trees are not of particular townscape quality. An
Arboricultural Impact Assessment has been submitted for the proposal which
indicates that there would be some loss of semi-mature trees to allow the
development to be constructed. The development gives rise to opportunities to
improve the management of the existing landscape and also to introduce some
hedge planting along the boundary with Landing Lane where the dog
exercise/training area is and there is some degree of conflict with passing dog
walkers. Such provision maybe secured by condition seeking tree protection for
existing planting and the provision of replacement and reinforcement planting in
strategic locations. Subject to such conditions being included as part of any
permission then the requirements of Policy Gl4 of the Local Plan would be complied
with.

ECOLOGY

5.15 Policy GI2 of the Local Plan indicates that any development where appropriate
result in net gain to biodiversity and help to improve biodiversity. Such a
commitment to secure biodiversity has recently become a formal requirement by
virtue of an amendment to Schedule 7 of the 1990 Town and Country Planning Act
to require an improvement of a minimum of 10% in biodiversity above the existing
situation according to a standard methodology.

5.16 The application has been accompanied by a Preliminary Ecological Appraisal
and a standard BNG metric. Further bat surveys have been submitted to address
concerns of the Environment Agency during the course of processing. The
submitted bat surveys indicate that the site is on a principal foraging route for bats
travelling along the River Ouse corridor with roosts clearly in the direct vicinity but
outside of the application site. In terms of the existing buildings of the complex and
the central reception and office building which would be retained but altered shows
no evidence of bat roosting activity and neither do the smaller animal housing
Application Reference Number: 24/00919/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 20

buildings which are due to be demolished and re-developed. In view of the location
of the site on a major foraging route there is clear potential to enhance provision by
providing nest boxes at appropriate locations within the site. Such provision may be
secured by means of condition to any planning permission.

5.17 Interms of other protected species there is no evidence of activity by Great
Crested Newts in the vicinity with no suitable water bodies and no evidence of
badger, hedgehog or reptile activity. In terms of bird activity, the surveys produced
no evidence of any nesting activity and little evidence of any foraging activity over
and above that associated with movement along the adjacent river corridor. There is
clear potential to provide biodiversity enhancement by providing nesting boxes of
suitable design within the new buildings and such provision may be secured by
means of condition attached to any permission.

5.18 In respect of Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG) a matrix has been submitted
illustrating the base line for the site. It indicates that 5.54 standard habitat units
would be lost through the reconstruction works, which would principally low and
middle grade grassland and tree and shrub planting. That would create a deficit of
6.09 standard habitat units. The applicant is committed to submitting a detailed plan
to address the identified deficit through new planting and habitat creation on site and
if necessary, by purchasing credits or part credits from an official provider for off site
work. This may be secured by means of condition to any permission.

5.19 Subject to the submission and prior approval of a Biodiversity Net Gain plan
along with the identified biodiversity enhancements it is felt that the proposal is felt
to be acceptable in ecological terms.

SUSTAINABLE DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION

5.20 Policy CC2 of the Adopted Local Plan indicates that new non-residential
development must meet high standards of sustainable design and construction.

5.21 Itis envisaged that the proposed new structures would have reduced energy
consumption through a fabric first approach with zones of natural unheated and
mechanical ventilation and heating to most appropriately secure animal welfare. The
current gas-powered heating system would be replaced with electric. Some areas
require continuous use, and it is envisaged that the energy use implications of that
would be addressed with the use of LED lighting and “smart controls” for heating,
lighting and specifically ventilation. The arrangement of activities would also be
designed to minimise any over-heated or over-lit spaces.

Application Reference Number: 24/00919/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 21

5.22 Itis further envisaged that provision would be made for energy generation on
site by solar PVs subject to the suitability of the roof spaces to be used and their
overall viability. Taking account of the site circumstances it is felt that the proposed
works would secure compliance with Policy CC2 of the Local Plan.

6.0 CONCLUSION

6.1 The proposal seeks permission for the reconstruction of the existing RSPCA
Small Animal Rehoming Centre in a form to comply with Modern standards. It lies
within Flood Zone 3 but comprises a less vulnerable use and would be designed to
be flood resilient. The proposal is felt to be acceptable in drainage terms and with
additional planting and biodiversity enhancements would be acceptable in
landscape and ecology terms. The public benefits of retaining the facility on site are
felt to carry substantial weight in the planning balance and approval is therefore
recommended.

7.0 RECOMMENDATION: Approve

1 TIME2 Development start within three years

2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following plans:-

RSPCA09-PA-001 REV(0.00) Topographical Survey

RSPCAQ09-PA-003 REV(0.00) Existing and Proposed Site Plan
RSPCAQ09-PA-004 REV(0.00) Proposed Site Plan

RSPCAQ09-PA-005 REV(0.00) Proposed: 24 Unit Cattery Building
RSPCAO09-PA-006 REV(0.00) Proposed: Veterinary and Storage Building
RSPCA09-PA-007 REV(0.00) Proposed: 33 Unit Main Kennel Building
RSPCAO09-PA-008 REV(0.00) Proposed Small Animal Building

240630 C2C XX XX DR_C 501 P04 Drainage Strategy

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is carried
out only as approved by the Local Planning Authority.

3 Notwithstanding any proposed materials specified on the approved drawings
or in the application form submitted with the application, samples of the external
materials to be used shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority prior to the commencement of the construction of the
development beyond foundation level. The development shall be carried out using
the approved materials.

Application Reference Number: 24/00919/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 22

Note: Because of limited storage space at our offices sample materials should be
made available for inspection at the site. Please make it clear in your approval of
details application when the materials will be available for inspection and where they
are located.

Reason: So as to achieve a visually cohesive appearance.

4 Details of all means of enclosure to the site boundaries shall be submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before the construction of
the development commences beyond foundation level and shall be provided in
accordance with the approved details before the development is occupied.

Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the area and the amenities of
neighbouring properties.

5 The site shall be developed with separate systems of drainage for foul and
surface water on and off site.

Reason: To ensure that the site is satisfactorily and efficiently drained and to secure
compliance with Policy ENV5 of the Local Plan.

6 The development shall be carried out in accordance with the details shown on
the submitted Proposed Drainage Strategy Revision P04 dated 25th March 2025,
unless otherwise approved in writing with the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interest of satisfactory and sustainable drainage and to secure
compliance with Policy ENV5 of the Local Plan

7 Prior to commencement of development, protective fencing to BS5837 shall be
erected around all existing trees shown to be retained in accordance with the Tree
Protection Plan ref: BA12174TPP Rev A, dated 09/03/23 submitted with the
application. The protective fencing line shall be adhered to at all times during
development to create exclusion zones. None of the following activities shall take
place within the exclusion zone: excavation, raising of levels; storage of any
machinery, apparatus, materials, or top soil; lighting of fires; parking or manoeuvring
of vehicles, et al. There shall be no site huts, no mixing of cement, no disposing of
washings, no stored fuel, no new trenches, or pipe runs for services or drains. The
fencing shall remain secured in position throughout the construction process. A
notice stating 'tree protection zone - do not remove' shall be attached to each
section of fencing. A copy of the document will be available for reference and
inspection on site at all times.

Reason: To ensure protection of existing trees before, during and after development
that make a significant contribution to the amenity of the area and/or development

Application Reference Number: 24/00919/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 23

and to secure compliance with Policy Gl4 of the Local Plan.

8 Before the commencement of development (including demolition, excavations,
and building operations et al), a comprehensive, site-specific Arboricultural Method
Statement (AMS) in accordance with the recommendations of the Tree Protection
Plan ref: BA12174TPP Rev A, dated 09/03/23 submitted with the application, and a
scheme of arboricultural supervision regarding protection measures for existing
trees within the application site shown to be retained on the approved drawings,
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Amongst other information, this statement shall include a schedule of tree works
where applicable, site rules and prohibitions, phasing of protection measures, non-
dig construction techniques, with particular reference to the removal and
replacement of hard surfacing adjacent to G2, G3 and T4 and the proposed
construction of the Cattery adjacent to T6.

The content of the approved document shall be strictly adhered to throughout
development operations. A copy of the document will be available for reference and
inspection on site at all times.

Reason: To ensure every effort and reasonable duty of care is exercised during the
development process to protect existing trees and the amenity of the development
and to secure compliance with Policy Gl4 of the Local Plan.

9 Within three months of the development commencing a detailed landscape
scheme shall be submitted to the local planning authority and shall be approved in
writing. The scheme shall include the species and position of new tree planting.
The trees shall be a minimum size of 8-10cm girth (measured at 1m) and 2.5-3.0
metres in height, and be planted, supported and maintained in accordance with
good arboricultural practice. This scheme shall be implemented within 6 months of
completion of the development or within 2 years of the date of the first felling of the
existing trees approved for removal whichever is the sooner. Any trees which within
the lifetime of the development die, are removed or become, in the opinion of the
local planning authority, seriously damaged or defective or diseased, shall be
replaced in the next planting season with others of a similar size and species, unless
the Local Planning Authority agrees alternatives in writing. This also applies to any
existing trees that are shown to be retained within the approved landscape scheme.

Reason: So that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied with the variety,
suitability and disposition of replacement trees as they are integral to the public
amenity of the development and conservation area.

10 Prior to the installation of any new external lighting, a 'lighting design
plan' shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.
The plan shall:

Application Reference Number: 24/00919/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 24

a) Specified lighting should be made in-line with current guidance - Bat
Conservation Trust (2023) Bats and Artificial Lighting at Night:
https://theilp.org.uk/publication/guidance-note-8-bats-and-artificial-lighting/

b) Demonstrate that it has taken account of the recommendation set out in the
Bat Survey Report provided by Wold Ecology August 2024.

c) Demonstrate how and where external lighting will be installed (through the
provision of appropriate lighting contour plans and technical specifications), clearly
demonstrating where light spill will occur, both within and outside the site boundary.

Any new external lighting shall be implemented in accordance with the approved
lighting design plan.

Reason: To maintain the favourable conservation status of bats and ensure the site
remains attractive to other light sensitive species and to secure compliance with
Policy GI 2 of the Local Plan.

11 No development shall take place (including ground and enabling works,

and vegetation removal) until a construction environmental management plan
(CEMP: Biodiversity) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local
planning authority. The CEMP: Biodiversity shall include, but not be limited to the
following:

a) Risk assessment of potentially damaging construction activities.

b) Identification of ‘biodiversity protection zones'.

c) Practical measures (both physical measures and sensitive working practices)
to avoid or reduce impacts during construction ((may be provided as a set of
method statements).

d) The location and timing of sensitive works to avoid harm to biodiversity
features and receptors, such as nesting.

e) The times during construction when specialist ecologists need to be present
on site to oversee works.

f) Responsible persons and lines of communication.

g) The roles and responsibilities on site of an ecological clerk of works (ECoW) or
similarly competent person.

h)  Use of protective fences, exclusion barriers and warning signs.

The approved CEMP:Biodiversity shall be adhered to and implemented throughout
the construction period strictly in accordance with the approved details, unless
otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority.

Reason: To facilitate the protection of notable/sensitive habitats and species within
the local area and to secure compliance with Policy GI2 of the Local Plan.

12 In accordance with the recommendations of the Wold Ecology Preliminary
Ecological Appraisal (PEA) (December, 2023) and Bat Report (August, 2024) 2no.
bat boxes to the specification set out in paragraph 8.2.5.1 of the PEA, and 3 no. nest
boxes, 1 starling box, 2 no. swift boxes, 2 no. sparrow terrace as detailed to the

Application Reference Number: 24/00919/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 25

specification set out in paragraph 8.4.7.3 and 8.4.7.4 of the PEA shall be provided
as set out in the PEA prior to the development being first brought into use and
maintained as such thereatfter.

Reason: To take account of and enhance the biodiversity and wildlife interest of the
area, and to comply with Policy GI2 of the Local Plan to contribute to and enhance
the natural and local environment by minimising impacts on, and providing net gains
for biodiversity, including establishing coherent ecological networks that are more
resilient to current and future pressures.

8.0 INFORMATIVES:
Notes to Applicant

1. STATEMENT OF THE COUNCIL'S POSITIVE AND PROACTIVE APPROACH

In considering the application, the Local Planning Authority has implemented the
requirements set out within the National Planning Policy Framework (paragraph 39)
in seeking solutions to problems identified during the processing of the application.
The Local Planning Authority took the following steps in order to achieve a positive
outcome:

1) Sought clarification of the site surface water drainage arrangements

i) Sought clarification of the proposed means of bat mitigation

iii) Sought clarification of the flood evacuation procedure

Iv) Sought clarification of the provision for sustainable construction.

V) Sought clarification of the provision for Biodiversity Net Gain within the site layout.

2. The Environmental Permitting (2016) Regulations require that a permit be
obtained for activities taking place :

- On or within 8 metres of a main river (16 metres if tidal)

- On or within 8 metres of a flood defence structure or culverted main river (16
metres if tidal)

- In the flood plain of a main river if the activity could affect flood flow or flood
storage and potential impacts are not controlled by planning permission.

The applicant should not assume that a permit will be forthcoming once planning
permission has been granted and should consult with the Environment Agency at
the earliest opportunity.

3. BIODIVERSITY NET GAIN (BNG)

Application Reference Number: 24/00919/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 26

The statutory framework for Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG) set by paragraph 13 of
Schedule 7A of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 requires a Biodiversity
Gain Plan to be submitted and approved prior to the commencement of
development. The development cannot be lawfully commenced until this condition is
satisfied.

Development may not begin unless:
(a) A Biodiversity Gain Plan has been submitted to the planning authority; and
(b) The planning authority has approved the plan

The planning authority, for the purposes of determining whether to approve a
Biodiversity Gain Plan, which is required in respect of this permission, is the City of
York Council.

SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS:
Under paragraph 14(2) of Schedule 7A, a Biodiversity Gain Plan must include the
following:

a) Information about the steps taken or to be taken to minimise the adverse effect of
the development on the biodiversity of the onsite habitat and any other habitat,

b) The pre- and post-development biodiversity value of the onsite habitat,

c) Any registered off-site biodiversity gain allocated to the development, and

d) Any biodiversity credits purchased to off-set the development and whether or not
from a registered provider.

In addition, under Articles 37C(2) and 37C(4) of The Town and Country Planning
(Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015, the following
specified matters are required, where development is not to proceed in phases:

- Name and address of the person completing the Plan, and (if different) the person
submitting the Plan;

- A description of the development and planning permission reference number (to
which the plan relates);

- The relevant date, for the purposes of calculating the pre-development biodiversity
value of onsite habitats and if proposing an earlier date, the reasons for using this
earlier date;

- The completed biodiversity metric calculation tool(s), stating the publication date of
the tool(s), and showing the calculation of the pre-development onsite value on the
relevant date, and post-development biodiversity value;

- A description of arrangements for maintenance and monitoring of habitat
enhancement to which paragraph 9(3) of Schedule 7A to the 1990 Act applies
(habitat enhancement which must be maintained for at least 30 years after the
development is completed);

- (Except for onsite irreplaceable habitats) a description of how the biodiversity gain

Application Reference Number: 24/00919/FULM Item No: 5a



Page 27

hierarchy will be followed and where to the extent any actions (in order of priority) in
that hierarchy are not followed and the reason for that;

- Pre-development and post-development plans showing the location of onsite
habitat (including any irreplaceable habitat) on the relevant date, and drawn to an
identified scale and showing the direction of North;

- A description of any irreplaceable habitat on the land to which the plan relates
which exist on the relevant date, and any part of the development for which planning
permission is granted where the onsite habitat of that part is irreplaceable habitat
arrangements for compensation for any impact the development has on the
biodiversity of the irreplaceable habitat; and

If habitat degradation has taken place:

- A statement to this effect;

- The date immediately before the degradation activity;

- The completed biodiversity tool showing the calculation of the biodiversity value of
the onsite habitat on that date, and

- Any available supporting evidence for the value.

There is a standard Biodiversity Gain Plan template available to complete which
brings together many of these matters into one document.

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/65dfOc4ecf7ebl6adff57f15/Biodiversit
y_gain_plan.pdf

Failure to submit a Biodiversity Gain Plan prior to the commencement of
development will lead to formal enforcement action being considered, which could
be in the form of a Temporary Stop Notice (that will require all development on site
to stop, for a period of 56 days).

Contact details:
Case Officer: Erik Matthews
Tel No: 01904 551416

Application Reference Number: 24/00919/FULM Item No: 5a


https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/65df0c4ecf7eb16adff57f15/Biodiversity_gain_plan.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/media/65df0c4ecf7eb16adff57f15/Biodiversity_gain_plan.pdf

This page is intentionally left blank



24/00919/FULM RSPCA, Lgnomg Lane, York YO26 4RH

5 Clifton Shert Reach

6/27/2025, 3:29:32 PM 1:1,654

o T O

Development Management City of York Council West Offices Station Rise
© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey AC0000822532



This page is intentionally left blank



“—J"‘; CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Planning Committee B

24/00919/FULM
RSPCA Landing Lane

Planning Committee B Meeting — 15 July 2025

T¢ obed



River Ouse

e Fur Baby Print Hub
> Gift shop 0
Landing Ln Landing Ln

Imagery ©2025 Google, Map data €202

Planning Committee B Meeting — 15 July 2025

2¢ abed



xisting site plan
with demolitions

atched)

Froposed uiing

Briing Buing
=

Bakng B
06 D el

hses: 152
Slice
LANDING LANE
[ —
qj Pop Sta
Kenmels
(RSPCAY
= w
e
Floy Area
12
s
hszza 15230
g g
H g

HOmE

1. IFIN DOUBT PLEASE CONTACT KENNELBUILD
PRIOR TO ANY WORKS COMMENGING ON STE
THE FOLLOWING ITEMS SHOULD BE ADDRESSED
BY THE PRINGIPAL DESIGHER

1. FI0 NOTIFICATION TO THE HSE {F REQUIRED]
2. ISSUE THE PRE-CONSTRUCTION INFORMATION
=)
ENSURE SERVICES SOLATION CERTIFICATES ARE
ISSUED [GAS, ELECTRIC, WATER, ETC]
REVIEW RED ASBESTOS SURVEY FOR BUILDINGS
BUILT BEFORE 2000
PRODUCE A FIZE MANAGEMENT PLAN.
IDENTIFY ROUTE 70 NEAREST AREIN THE
T OF AN EMERGENCY.
ENSURE ADEGUATE WELFARE FACILITIES HAVE
BEEN PROVIDED.
ENSURE OPERATORS ARE COMPETENT TO CARY
OUT THE TASK REGUIRED. EVIDENCE OF SEILL.
cARDs ETC,
REVIEW ACCESS AND EGRESS OF MACHINERY
‘OR PLANT EGUIPMENT TG SITE —
15 THIS RESTRICTED.
(AL FROM SITE. WILL TS 52
SKIPS OR LOAD AND G (TIPPERS/VANS]
WASTE CARRIERS LICENCE ETC.
IF REGUIRED REVIEW RAD GROUND SURVET TS

POPULATED AND UP T DATE
(IFMORE THAN | CONTRACTOR IS ONSITE)

e¢ abed

Kennel

9Sohway Court
way 01270753 433
Crewe Business ark : Infokennelbulld couk
awi6n W www kennelbuiid.co.uk
R —
o
PR ek ot & D e
-
Lanting2ne

Planning Committee B Meeting — 15 July 2025




As proposed site plan

Ordnance Surveye
Ukmapcentre.com

apzES|

oSt

L

sarhey|

452530

asestn

asza00

e e

LANDING LaNE

Play frea

~

12200

erasct

ooeegt

opraar

sBract

FEE

452500

asaann

pE=

Serlul runbert 219916
£Crawn copyright and datubnse right 201
Drdnance Survey licence 101048957
FeprocuCTian 1 Whols or I pant K prokibited

wthaut the prion permission of Ordnunce Survey

Nom
1. IF IN DOUBT PLEASE COMTACT KENNELBUILD.
BRIOR TO ANY WORKS COMMENCING ON SITE
THE FOLLOWING ITEVS SHOULD BE ADDRESSED
Y THE PRINCIPAL DESIGNER:

1. FIO NOTIFCATION TO THE HSE [IF REGUIRED]
2. ISSUE THE PRE-CONSTRUCTION INFORMATION

3. ENSURE SERVICES SOLATION CERTIFICATES ARE
SSUED (GAS, ELECTRIC, WATER, EIC]
SURVET FOR BUILDINGS

qﬂ»
218388
EEELF
§rEsgE
i

k

3

g

o

i

=

ENSURE QPERATORS ARE COMPETENT TO CARRY
TASK REGUIRED. EVIDENCE OF SLL

OF MACKINERT
R PLANT EGUIPMENT TO SITE -

10, WASTE REMOVAL FROW SITE. WILL THIS BE
SKIPS O LOAD AND GO [PPERS/VAHS|
WASTE CARRIERS LICENCE ETC.

11.IF REGUIRED REVIEW RED GROUND SURVET TO
IDENTIFY POSSIBLE BURIED SERVICES
[GAS. ELECTRIC, WATER] PREVIOUS LAND UsE
[BURIED WASTE, POSSIBLE COTAMINATION ETC]

12, ENSURE THE SITE HEALTH & SAFETY FILEIS

[IF MORE THAN 1 COMTRACTOR IS ONSITE]

The professional kennel specislsts
Solway Court

Electra Way 101270 753 493
Crewe Business Park _E: info@kennelbuild.co.uk
cwien W kennelbuild co.uk

Kennelbuild

[ —

BSPCA ork, Haroat B it Bk

Laning e

7€ abed

™= a1 Planing

Planning Committee B Meeting — 15 July 2025



Proposed cattery building
and retained (altered
Reception building

iy

1. F N DOUST PLEASE CONTACT KENNELBULD

PRIORTO ANY WORKS GOMMENGING O ST

THEFOLLOWRIG TEM SHOULD BE ADDRESSED

B THE PRINCIPAL DESIGHER:

1. FID NOTIFGATIGH TO THEHSE ¥ REGURED|

2 SSUE THE PRE-CONSTRUCTION INFGRMATION
eel

2. ENSURE SERVICES SOLATION CERTFICATES AZE
ISUED (GAS, ELECTRIC, WATER, ETC|

4. REVIEW RAD ASEESTOS SURNEY FOR BULDINGS.

7. ENSURE ADEGUATE WELFAREFACIUTIES HAVE
BEEN PROVIDED.

5. ENSURE OPERATORS ARE COMPETENT TO CARRY
‘OUTTHE TASK REGURED. EVIDENCEOF SKILL

9. REVIEW ACCESS AND EGRESS OF MACHINERY
OR PLAT EGUPMIBNTTO STE -
TRICTED.

RIERS U
11.IF REGUIRED REVIEW RLD GROUNDURVEY 1O
o SBLEBURED.

T
(IFMOFE THAN | GONTRAGTOR 5 GNSITE)

24 Unit Cattery Building

=R PAT

% P

Siore rcey [rr———

Meters

F CONSTRUCTION TO BE STEADMANS 1200 AS2S BESULATED CEMPOSITE
ROOF SHEET 1 PYC PLASTSOL COATED GALAVANISED STEEL CLADGING B
BERLIN GREY 16-3-25. WITH ALL GUITER & FLASHINGS MERLY GREY 16025

JALL CLADDRIG TO BE STEADMANS SOMM ASMIR WICRORIS HORZONTAL WALL

GREY *10-A4S", FXED 70 251AM STEEL 76D SPACERS SET VER!
TG 11 5VIM O35 BOARD, SET OVER TYVEL HOUSE WR2AF VAFO!

‘CLADDING PVC PLASTEOL COATED GALAVANSED STEEL CLADDING IN COOSEWING
- TICALLY AT 1000MM
248 VAPOLR

Fc F2 ALIE_BY SPECIALIST, WITH 1
JALL BATES BESULATION AND IHNER FACE OF 125MM €7 BOARD

AL GUITER & FLASHINGS TO BE PV PLASTISGL GOATED GALAVANSED STEEL
CLADDAMG e MERUN GREY 18825

/RS AND WRNDOWS T BE AUTHERM 47 PROFLE I ANTIGUE
GREY SEMO1S WITH LOW “E" TOUGHENED SAFETY GLASS O
COMSIST OF Z80M GLAZING UNTS WITH 441 TOUGHENED

LOW “E" OUTER SKIN 18MM ARGON FLLED CAVITY WITH BLACK.
THERMOBAR SPACER AND S LAAINATED INER PANE

Kennel

Kennel

U
o o

DDDDHDDD

I

N I o N B

01270 753 493
E: infokennelbulld.co.uk
W: wwrw benmnelbuild.co.uk

5k Tork st vt

4 AT, gt Dk B

reped
Eaig G A

4 o Coary B

s =g b
s

[T

Meters  Kennel [orssmanon

[ 110 [

Planning

Planning Committee B Meeting — 15 July 2025



MEOSTE
RODF SHEETIN PYC PLASTEOL COATED GALAVANEED STEEL CLADDING 1N
MERLIN GREY 18:5-25, WITH ALL GUTTER & FLASHIGS MERLIN GREY 16-8.25

WAL LADDING T BE TEADUAYS 5 ASME MICRORS HORIONTAL WAL
D GALAVANIED STEEL CLADDING IN GOOSEWRNG

SoE
e R e e

ALL GUTTER & FLASHINGS TO BE PVC PLASTSOL COATED GALAVANISED STEEL

NG N MERLM GREY 15825

D008 ANO WIOOWS 10 8 AUTIERM 47 RORLER: TGE

l l I I ng a n p u p py u I I n g THEBAGEAR SPACER AND S LAINATED I MR PANE
P R T
e Y 2R e 2 f b,

3 Sttt Corscnacitemes 3 pr— C rr—
/1 /‘ 33 Unit Main Kennel Building k

eraparian

J 1
J D N .

™ MNP N A

o
, @
ITTTTTOTN 4 5 F—— 0]
w

(©)]

Kennel

Sohway Court

Electra Way T-01270 753 493

Crewe Business Park - infokennelbulld.co.uk
1610 v kernelbuild co.uk

==y N
1. IF 1N DOUST PLEASE COMTACT KENNELEUILD
PRIOR TO ANT WORES COMMENCING ON SITE ) Meters  Kannel
THE FOLLOWING ITEMS SHOULD BE ADDRESSED 6 Unit
BY THE PRINCIPAL DESIGHER:
1. F10 NOTIRCATION TO THE HSE (IF REQUIRED) Puppy
ISSUE THE PRE-CONSTRUCTION INFORMATION Building
- | = [ I
3. ENSURE SERVICES ISGLATION CERTFCATES AZE =
ISSUED [GAS, ELECTRIC, WATE, ETC] P —
4. REVIEW BED ASBESTOS SURVEY FOR ULDINGS _
BULT BEFORE 2000 -
5. PRODUCE A FIBE MANAGEMENT PLANL
5. IDENTIFY BOUTE T NEAREST ALE I THE
Eo — O T —
7. ENSURE ADEQUATE WELFAGE FACILIIES HAVE
SsuE Ao ROOF HEE N PG PLATOL CORTED GALAYANEED SEELCLADDRIO 1
o OO e COMPETENT T CARRT MIEBLR: GREY 12,85, WITH ALL GUTTER & FLASHIGS MEPLM GFEY 185,25 .
(THE TASK REQUIRED. EVIDENCE OF SKILL WALL CLABDING TS EEerAnMANxsnMM Asm MICRORIB HORZGNTAL WALL .
CARDS ETC. CLADDING PYC PLASTSOL COAT ED STEEL CLADDING IN GOOSEWING B BT ) — [
9. REVIEW ACCESS AND EGRESS OF MACHINERY GREY *10-A0S", Fw&nrcstMmELzm:mcznsﬂvsr{rcﬁ«uv AT 1000WM - T g Yot
T EQUPMENTTO STE ‘CENTRES R1TO 11,50 050 BOARD, SET OVER TYVEK HOUSE WRAS Y APOU ot
15 TS RESTRICTED. BARRIER AMD FIXED MO 150 SFS FRAME, BY SPECIALIST, WITH 150MM
10, WASTE REMOVAL FROM SITE. WILL THIS BE 2OCTWOOL WAL = pR— N
SKIPS OR LOAD AND GO [TPERS/VANS] ALL GUTTER & FLASHINGS TO BE PVC PLASTISGL COATED GALAVANBED STEEL Pregosed. 6 Una Peey Bubting.
WASTE CARRIERS UICENCE ETC. L SUTER & FASHIGS 10 B2 PV ot ot S
1. IF REGURED REVIEW RED GROUND SURVEY T ——
IDENTIFY POSSIBLE BURIED SERVICES 'DGORS AND WINDOWS 10 BE ALTHERA 47 PROFLE N ANTGUE == Ca
[GAS. ELECTRIC, WATER] PREVIOUS LAND UsE ‘GREY SENDIS WITH LOW *E” TOUGHENED SAFETY GLASS TO I — P P T |
[BURIED WASTE, POSSIBLE CONTAMINATION ETC] ‘CONSIST OF 26MM GLAZING UNITS WITH 4hiM TOUGHENED I I I ! uorscues. uaneen
12, ENSURE THE SITE MEALTH & SAFETY FLEIS LOW " OUTER S 1501 ABGON RLLED CAVTY WITH BLACK omnme e PR
DATE THERMOBAR SPACER AND 6MM LAMINATED INNER PANE Ken nel RSPCACS 24007 L o0
[FMORETHAN | CONTRACTOR IS ONSITE) A1 o
janning,

Planning Committee B Meeting — 15 July 2025 6



ROOF CONSTRUCTICH TO BE STEADAMAMNS 1200 AS3S INSULATED COMPOSITE
ROOF SHEET Il PYC PLASTISOL COATED GALAVANISED STEEL CLADING 1N
MERLIN GREY 18-5-25, WITH ALL GUTTER & FLASHINGS MERLIN GREY 15525

WALL CLADDING TO BE STEADMANS SOMW! ASMR MICRORIE HOREOHTAL WALL
CLADDING PUC PLASTISOL COATED GALAVANISED STEEL CLADDANG i GOOSEWING
(GREY *10-A05". FIXED 10 25MM STEEL 12D IPACERS SET VERTICALLY AT 1000MM
(CENTRES INTO 11,5311 G55 BOARD, SET OVER TYVEK HOUSE WRAP VAPOUR
BARRIER AND FIXED BITO 150MM 73 FRAME. BY SPECIALST, WITH 150N
ROCEWOOL WALL BATTS INSULATION AND RINER FACE OF 12.51IM CP BOAGD

"R AL GUTES & FLASHIGS To 82 PYC PLASTIOL COATED GALAVAMSED STERL
o5 CLABDING NNERLA GREY 15825
. 2!
10 tE AuTERN 471
GEEY SE101 S WITK LOW " TOUGHEED SAFENY GLASS 10
COMSST OF 23l GLALII NI I i TOUGHEED
bk 7s 2z 5 LOW “E” QUTER SKIN 18MM ARGON FLLED CAVITY WITH BLACK.
- ) adsisr, PR pioe R TRERIOBAR SHACER AN 6408 LAMNIATED HIER PANE
. . og FFL e g0 tmn 1
P o fma
P i3y o
1. 1F I DOUBT PLEASE CONTACT ERUIELSULD
T0 A1Y WORKE COMMENCING O STE
FAE FOLLOWNG. TEVE SHOULD B2 ADDREWED

BY THE PRINCIPAL DESIGHER:

1. FI0 NOTIRICATION TO THESE (IF PEGUIRED]

2 ISSUE THE PRE-COMSTRUCTION INFORMATIGH
Pl

3. ENSURE SERVICES ISOLATION CERTICATES ARE
1SSUED (A3, ELECTEC, WATER, ETC)

£, REVIEW LD ASOESTOS SURVEY FOR BUALDNGS
BT BEFORE 2000
PRODUCE A FRE MANAGEMENT PLAN.

g
3
El
g
H
i
E
i

EVENT OF AN EMERIGENCY..
v 7. ENSURE ADEGUATE WELFARE FACILITES HAVE
BE£M FROVIDE
5. ENSURE GPERATORS ARE COMPETENTTO CAREY
(OUT THE TASK REGUIRED. EVIDENCE OF SKILL
ARDS ETC.
5. REVIEW ACCESS AND EGRESS OF MACHINERY
OR PLANTEGUPMENT T0 STE-
15 THiS RESTRICTED.
10. WASTE BEMOV AL FEOM STE. WILL THE B2
SKPS OF LOAD AHD GO (TPPERS/VANS)
(CARRIERS UCENCE ETC.
11, F REGUIRED EVIEW RAD GROUND SURVEY TO
IDENTIFY POSSIBLE BURIED SERVICES
(@45, ELECTRIC, WATER) PREVIOLS LAND USE
[BURIED WASTE, FOSSIBLE CONTAMINATION £TC)
12 ENSURE THE SITE HEALTH & SAFETY FLE 1§
ATED AND UP 10 DATE
[FMORETHAN 1 CONTRACTOR IS OHSTE)

RH
14.81 &

FFi od
1094 EEGH
2002

4 RH
FFL

Cafterf 114,39
ez MG
052

RH
1287

.
)
e @
D

W

\l

Kennel

g toorsin
T e L con
g — = i Plutongi it
d il 1 mikeupton
Small Animal Unit
-

57 vor s e

™
RSP Yok g & Dt o
-
Utingtans
m m .
e g g e b Durcichedd
Prososs eat e Ssking.

= A0 | mermems

Planning Committee B Meeting — 15 July 2025 7



Proposed veterinary and
storage building and isolation
building

FI 03 @ -

fopg o

Meters  Kennel

ROOF CONSTRUCTION TO BE STEADMANS 120MM AS35 INSULATED COMPOSTTE
ROOF SHEET IN PVC PLASTISOL COATED GALAVANISED STEEL CLADDING IN
MERUIN GREY 15-B-25, WITH ALL GUTTER & FLASHINGS MERLIN GREY 18-8-25

WALL CLADDING TO BE STEADMANS SONAL ASMR MICRORIE HORIZONTAL WALL

CLADDING PVC PLASTISOL CLADDING IN

GREY *10-A.05*, FIXED TO 26MM STEEL ZED SPACERS SET VERTICALLY AT 1000
CENTRES INTO 11.5MM OSB BOARD, SET OVER TYVEK HOUSE WRAP VAPOUR
BARRIER AND FIXED INTO 1S0MIM SFS FRAVE, BY SPECIALIST, WITH 1SN
ROCKWODL WALL BATTS INSULATION AND INNER FACE OF 12.5MM CP BOARD

ALL GUTTER & FLASHINGS T BE PYC PLASTISOL GOATED GALAVANISED STEEL
CLADDING IN MERLIN GREY 18825

D WINDOWS TO BE ALITHERM 47 FROFILE IN ANTIGUE
GREY SENDTS WITH LOW "E" TOUGHENED SAFETY GLASS 1O
CONSIST OF ZEMM GLAZING UNITS WITH 4MM TOUGHENED

£” OUTER SKIN 18MM ARGON FILLED CAVITY WITH BLACK
THERMOBAR SPACER AND &M LAMINATED INNER PANE

nores
1. IF I DOUST PLEASE CONTACT KENNELSUILD
PRIOR TO ANY WORKS GOMMENGING ON STE
THE FOLLOWING ITEMS SHOULD BE ADDRESSED
BY THE PRINCIPAL DESIGNES

1. FIONOTIFCATION TO THE HSE [IF REGUIRED)
2 ISSUE THE PRE-CONSTRUCTION INFORMATION
(poi)
. ENSURESERVICES SOLATION CIRTIFCATES ARE
ISSUED (GAS, ELECTRIC, WATER, ETC)
EEVIEW RAD ASBESTOS SURVEY FOR BUILDINGS
BULT BEFORE 2000
BRODUCE A FIRE MANAGEMENT PLANL.
IDEMTIFY ROUTE 70 NEAREST ARE IN THE
EVENT OF AN EMERGENCT.
JUATE WELFARE FACILITIES HAVE

z

ENSURE GRERATORS ARE COMBETENT TO CARRY
(OUT THE TASK REGUIRED. EVIDENCE OF SKILL
caRDs ETC.

REVIEW ACCESS AND EGRESS OF MACHINERY
OR PLANT EQUPMENT 1O SITE—

1STHIS RESTRICTED.

WASTE SEMOVAL FROM SITE. WILL THIS BE

SKIPS OR LOAD AND GO (TIPPERS/VANS]

WASTE CARRIERS LICENCE ETC.

1. IF REGUIRED REVIEW 28D GROUND SURVEY TO.
IDENTIFY POSSIBLE BURIED SERVICES

[GAS, ELECTRIC, WATER] PREVIOUS LAND USE
[BUBIED WASTE POSSIBLE CONTAMINATION £TG
ENSURE THE SITE HEALTH £ SAFETY FILE S
POPULATED AND UP T DATE

{IF MORE THAN 1 GONTRAGIOR I5 ONSITE)

Kennel

2 NI
o \: '
Ek] & Unit
Isolation .
Building > O

Meters  Kennel

ROOF CONSTRUCTION TO BE STEADMANS 120MM AS35 INSULATED COMPOSITE
ROOF SHEET IN PYC PLASTISOL COATED GALAVANISED STEEL CLADDING IN
MERLIN GREY 18.8.25, WITH ALL GUITER & FLASHINGS MERUN GREY 18.8.25

WAL CLADDING TO BE STEADMANS SOMM ASMR MICRORIE HORIZONTAL WALL
CLADDING PVC PLASTISOL COATED GALAVANISED STEEL CLADDING IN GOOSEWING
(GREY *10-A-05*, FIXED TO 25MM STEEL ZED SPACERS SET VERTICALLY AT 1000MM
11.5MM 038 BOARD. SET OVER TYVEK HOUSE WRAP VAPOUR
BARRIER AND FIXED INTO 15OMM SFS FRAME, BY SPECIALIST, WITH 1SOMM
/OOL WALL BATTS INSULATION AND INNER FACE OF 12.5MA CP BOARD

ALL GUITER & FLASHINGS TO BE PVC PLASTISOL COATED GALAVANISED STEEL
‘CLADDING IN MERLIN GREY 18.8-25

DOORS AND WINDOWS T BE ALITHERM 47 PROFILE IN ANTIGUE
GREY SENOTS WITH LOW "E” TOUGHENED SAFETY GLASS TO
CONSIST OF 28MM GLAZING UNTTS WITH 4MM TOUGHENED

LOW “E" OUTER SKIN 1EMM ARGON RLLED CAVITY WITH BLACK
THERMOBAR SPACER AND 6MIM LAMINATED INNER PANE

Kennel

9 solway Court
Electra way T-01270 753 483

Crewe pusinesspark £ infoekennelbuild.co.k
cwieln W: . kennelbul.eo.uk

Meters  Kennel

Kennel
- RSPCA Yook Site Rmdevelopemert

AT, s B S

Lt i
T [T p——
e § ik B
oo 047

Planning Committee B Meeting — 15 July 2025

8¢ abed



Page 39 Agenda Item 5b

COMMITTEE REPORT

Date: 15 June 2025 Ward: Guildhall

Team: East Area Parish: Guildhall Planning Panel

Reference: 25/00532/LBC

Application at: 1 Museum Street York YO1 7DT

For: Internal and external works in conjunction with proposed use as

bookshop to include new/replacement platform lift, internal
reconfigurations to include new staircase, alterations to internal
openings and partitions, installation of shelving and other
replacement joinery, redecoration and repair works,
new/replacement plumbing and services and rainwater goods,
secondary glazing and repairs to fenestration, new/replacement
flooring, mezzanine structure and balustrade, and solar PV

panels
By: Mr Hugh Topping
Application Type: Listed Building Consent
Target Date: 13 June 2025

Recommendation: Refuse

1.0 PROPOSAL

1.1 No.1 Museum Street is a Grade Il listed building located at the junction of St
Leonards Place, Blake Street, Museum Street, and Duncombe Place. The site is
also positioned within the Central Historic Core Conservation Area. The building has
been most recently used as the city’s primary Tourist Information Centre with
associated office space to the upper floors, although the building has been more
recently vacated. The building was constructed 1860 as a register office by Rawlins
Gould Architects with later alterations including during the 1930’s.

1.2 The application seeks Listed Building Consent for internal and external works in
conjunction with the proposed use of the building as a bookshop to include
new/replacement platform lift, internal reconfigurations to include new staircase,
alterations to internal openings and partitions, installation of shelving and other
replacement joinery, redecoration and repair works, new/replacement plumbing and
services and rainwater goods, secondary glazing and repairs to fenestration,
new/replacement flooring, a mezzanine structure and balustrade, and solar PV
panels.

1.3 Relevant Property History - Internal works to include removal of partition walls
and modern shop fit-out, approved 19.03.2025, reference 25/00092/LBC.

Application Reference Number: 25/00532/LBC Item No: 5b



Page 40

Call-In Request

1.4 The application has been called-in to Planning Committee by Councillor Melly on
the following grounds:

- Impact on the listed building.
- The long-term preservation of the listed building.
- Its impact on the setting of other listed buildings, including York Minster.

2.0 POLICY CONTEXT

2.1 Planning applications should be determined in accordance with the development
plan unless there are material considerations that indicate otherwise. The
development plan is the City of York Local Plan. In this instance, the application site
does not fall within a district of the Authority subject to either a Neighbourhood Plan
or Village Design Statement.

City of York Local Plan

2.2 The Local Plan was adopted on 27 February 2025. Local Plan Policy relevant to
the determination of this application is detailed below:

2.3 Policy D5 (Listed Buildings) states that proposals affecting a listed building, or its
setting will be supported where they (i) preserve, enhance or better reveal those
elements which contribute to the significance of the building or its setting. The more
important the building, the greater the weight that will be given to its conservation;
and (ii) help secure a sustainable future for a building at risk; (iii) are accompanied
by an appropriate, evidence-based heritage statement assessing the significance of
the building. Changes of use will be supported where it has been demonstrated that
the original use of the building is no longer viable and where the proposed new use
would not harm the significance of the building. Harm to an element which
contributes to the significance of a listed building, or its setting will be permitted only
where this is outweighed by the public benefits of the proposal. Substantial harm or
total loss of a listed building will be permitted only where it can be demonstrated that
the proposals would bring substantial public benefits.

Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990

2.4 Section 16(2) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act
1990 creates a statutory presumption for the Local Planning Authority to have
special regard to the desirability of preserving the Listed Building or its setting or any
special historic or architectural features it possesses. As this is a statutory duty it
must be given considerable importance and weight in determining the planning

Application Reference Number: 25/00532/LBC Item No: 5b



Page 41

application. Where harm is identified to a Heritage Asset there will be a strong
presumption against the grant of permission.

2.5 The application site is also within a Conservation Area. Section 72 of the
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 requires that special
attention shall be paid, also, to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the
character or appearance of the Conservation Area.

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and Planning Practice Guidance (PPG)

2.6 The NPPF sets out the Government’s overarching planning policies and at its
heart is a presumption in favour of sustainable development. The NPPF and the
PPG forms a material consideration in planning decisions. Relevant policies and
sections of the NPPF are as follows:

2.7 The legislative requirements of Sections 16 and 72 are in addition to the
government policy contained in chapter 16 of the NPPF. The NPPF classes listed
buildings and Conservation Areas as "designated heritage assets” and advises on
heritage assets as follows. Paragraph 208 states that Local Planning Authorities
should identify and assess the particular significance of any heritage asset that may
be affected by a proposal. They should consider the impact of a proposal on a
heritage asset, to avoid or minimise conflict between the heritage asset's
conservation and any aspect of the proposal. Paragraph 210a) states that when
determining planning applications, Local Planning Authorities should take account of
sustaining and enhancing the significance of any heritage asset. Paragraph 212
adds that in considering the impact of a proposed development on the significance
of a designated heritage asset, great weight should be given to the asset's
conservation. The more important the asset, the greater the weight should be.
Significance can be harmed by or lost through alteration or destruction of the
heritage asset or development within its setting.

2.8 Paragraph 214 states that where a proposed development will lead to
substantial harm to or the total loss of significance of a designated heritage asset,
local planning authorities should refuse consent, unless it can be demonstrated that
the substantial harm or loss is necessary to achieve substantial public benefits that
outweigh that harm or loss. Paragraph 215 states that where a development
proposal will lead to less than substantial harm to the significance of a heritage
asset, this harm should be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal,
including securing its optimum viable use.

3.0 CONSULTATIONS
INTERNAL:

Design, Conservation and Sustainable Development
Application Reference Number: 25/00532/LBC Item No: 5b




Page 42

3.1 Concerns raised with regard to the following:

- Mezzanine would erode evidence of the original layout of the building and the
private administrative function of the rooms, harming the illustrative, historic
value of the building.

- Low level bookshelves to first floor (obscuring original fireplaces) would
diminish status of some of the most important rooms in the building. Revisions
suggested to retain first floor fireplaces.

- Lift would have negligible harm to original layout of ground and second floor,
however, would erode historic layout to the first floor.

- Fire lobby arrangement to ground and first floor would harm character of the
building, as a result of their intersection into the proportions and architectural
features of the existing spaces. Revisions suggested to minimise their impact.

3.2 Other new openings proposed would result in a loss of fabric but have a minor
impact on the historic value of the building, resulting in negligible change to the
circulation.

3.3 No objections raised to revised glazing and solar panels, subject to detail of the
routes of cables and location of related plant, in association with the solar PV
panels, to ensure any damage to features of special interest is avoided.

3.4 No objections raised to widening of Blake Street entrance to ground floor, given
minimised loss of fabric and sense of enclosure maintained.

3.5 Structural works have been designed by a conservation accredited structural
engineer. All of the new work is additive and is concealed within the existing floor
structure. It is considered this aspect of the scheme would preserve the significance
of the building.

EXTERNAL:

Guildhall Planning Panel

3.6 Welcomed use of the building, however raised concerns about extent of internal
refurbishment.

York Civic Trust

3.7 Commented in support.

York Conservation Areas Advisory Panel

3.8 Commented in support.
Application Reference Number: 25/00532/LBC Item No: 5b



Page 43

York Conservation Trust

3.9 Commented in support.
4.0 REPRESENTATIONS

Neighbour Notification and Publicity

4.1 No representations were received.
5.0 APPRAISAL
KEY ISSUES:

- Impact on the Special Architectural or Historic Interest of the Listed Building
and Conservation Area.

ASSESSMENT:

5.1 The application seeks Listed Building Consent for internal and external works in
conjunction with the proposed use of the building as a bookshop to include
new/replacement platform lift, internal reconfigurations to include new staircase,
alterations to internal openings and partitions, installation of shelving and other
replacement joinery, redecoration and repair works, new/replacement plumbing and
services and rainwater goods, secondary glazing and repairs to fenestration,
new/replacement flooring, a mezzanine structure and balustrade, and solar PV
panels.

5.2 The significance of the building, in terms of its special architectural and historic
interest, is principally derived from its age, character and well-preserved appearance
as a Victorian register office, illustrative of the administration of poor relief and
registration in the 1860’s and subsequent transition to local government
administration, and the development of York in the 1860’s, as well as internal and
external features of interest. This includes the composition of its built form and
internal layout which remains largely legible, along with historic joinery and
plasterwork which reflect the hierarchy of its internal spaces.

In terms of the conservation area, the building is within the Central Historic Core
Conservation Area and is within Character Area 4 Museum Gardens and Exhibition
Square. The character area contains a series of large public buildings which
illustrate the cultural life of York across the centuries, and a high concentration of
listed buildings.

Application Reference Number: 25/00532/LBC Item No: 5b



Page 44

5.3 The works proposed (as consolidated from the Schedule of Work submitted) are
detailed below:

External

Install solar PV panels to roofscape

Ground Floor

Install metal framed glazing picket door system, cupboards and bookcases
Install timber steps to landing

Install platform lift

Widen existing door opening and install bi-fold timber door

Alter existing sash windows to remove modern glazing bar and install metal
frame secondary glazing

Install bookcase joinery items

Rehang/re-establish existing timber panelled doors

Replace existing modern handrail

Install partition wall and door set to form storage

Fix shut existing timber panelled doors

Install metal framed glazing door system and fanlight

Make good plaster

Install partition wall to form WC and refit existing timber panelled door
Install new sanitary fittings and finishes

Install platform lift and locally alter modern concrete floor to suit levels
Form door opening to lift within existing wall

Form opening within existing wall

Reinstate original door opening to strongroom

Install fire rated partition walls with high level glazing

New solid oak boards to be overlaid over assumed original finish to suspended
floors

Remove internal partitions that form non-original opening

Reinstate original fireplace and surround

First Floor

Fix shut existing timber panelled door and replace modern glass with painted
timber panel

Rehang existing timber panelled door

Replace existing modern handralil

Install desk fittings

Remove existing secondary glazing/modern glazing bars and install metal
frame secondary glazing

Install bookcase joinery items

Application Reference Number: 25/00532/LBC Item No: 5b



Page 45

- Reinstate original door opening

- Install platform lift and supporting wall

- Remove modern door-set, widen existing opening, and install timber lining

- Install timber-framed staircase to second floor

- Form opening within existing wall and install timber lining

- Fix shut timber panelled doors/infill door opening

- New solid oak boards to be overlaid over assumed original finish to suspended
floors

- Install fire rated partition walls with high level glazing

- Install fire rated timber panelled doors

- Make good plaster ceiling and cornice

- Reinstate original fireplace and surround

Second Floor

- Install sanitary fittings and finishes

- Install partition wall and door set to form WC

- Install platform lift and supporting wall/door opening

- Form new openings within existing walls and install timber linings
- Install bookcase joinery items

- Install mezzanine structure and balustrade

- Remove modern timber door sets/infill door openings
- Install kitchen fittings and finishes

- Remove modern partition wall

- Install timber floor with solid oak board finish

- Replace carpet tiles with linoleum sheet finish

5.4 It is noted that there is an extant consent for removal of the tourist information fit
out and dated electrical and mechanical services under planning reference
25/00092/LBC. The proposed use as a bookshop does not require Planning
Permission, as the building as existing falls within the relevant Use Class to support
this function.

IMPACT ON THE SPECIAL ARCHITECTURAL OR HISTORIC INTEREST OF THE
LISTED BUILDING AND CONSERVATION AREA

5.5 The scheme proposes extensive intrusive alterations to the building including the
installation of a lift, forming new openings and installing mezzanines in connection
with a proposed change of use to a book shop. Following correspondence with the
applicant, a number of changes have been made to revise the application, as
addressed within the appraisal. Fundamentally, formation of the mezzanine,
however, remains unacceptable in principle.

External Alterations

Application Reference Number: 25/00532/LBC Item No: 5b



Page 46

Fenestration

5.6 A number of the original 1 over 1 paned windows have been altered by the
addition of crude glazing bars in the 1930’s, detracting from the high quality of the
original design. It is proposed to revert to the original pattern by the removal of the
later glazing bars where these are featured to the existing windows. At the same
time, the visually intrusive secondary glazing is to be replaced with high quality
aluminium secondary glazing matching the pattern of the sashes and fixed within the
staff beads. The proposed changes would significantly enhance the aesthetic value
of the asset, restoring elements of the original design, while retaining effective
measures to mitigate climate change. The works proposed are therefore not
deemed to have an adverse impact on the special architectural or historic interest of
the building or the character or appearance of the Conservation Area.

Solar Panels

5.7 Historic England have provided detailed guidance for the installation of PV
panels in ‘Energy Efficiency and Historic Buildings: Solar Electric (Photovoltaics)
(2018). The Introduction advises that the installation of any renewable energy
source should be seen as part of a ‘whole building approach’ to improve the energy
efficiency of a building. Taking a whole building approach is a logical process which
enables the best possible balance to be struck between saving energy and reducing
carbon emissions, sustaining heritage significance, and maintaining a healthy
building. It goes on to explain that the setting and significance of the building and the
location and managing the visual appearance of the panels is an important part of
the design process. It is generally not considered sympathetic to a building's
appearance to have a solar panel or other equipment fixed to its main elevations.
The NPPF also recognises that even small-scale projects for renewable and low
carbon energy provide a valuable contribution to cutting greenhouse gas emissions.

5.8 The reflective quality of the flat panels and their protrusion above the plain of the
roof slope would draw attention and contrast markedly with the mellowed and
uneven appearance of the historic slate covering. At the same time, the proposed
location of the panels would ensure that the panels would not be intrusive in high
level views from upper floors and would not draw attention in views of the building in
the street scene. Whilst there would be some harm to the character of the building
and the character and appearance of the conservation area, it is of a low degree
and less than substantial and would be outweighed by the public benefit of making
efforts to mitigate climate change. Full details of routes of cables and location of
related plant should be required to ensure damage to features of special interest is
avoided. This could be secured by condition.

Internal Alterations

Bookshelves
Application Reference Number: 25/00532/LBC Item No: 5b




Page 47

5.9 It is proposed to form well-designed low-level bookshelves across the panelling
beneath windows on both floors. Currently on the ground floor, the panels are boxed
in and consequently the alteration would result in no additional harm. On the first
floor, the panelling remains exposed, forming an integral part of the design of the
building and evidence of the high status of the spaces. Covering the panels, as
originally proposed, was considered to hide evidence of the original design from
view, diminishing the status of some of the most important rooms in the building.
The scheme has been subsequently revised to omit these bookcases, retaining
visibility of the moulded panelling.

Fire Lobbies

5.10 New fire lobbies are proposed in two locations. Both proposals have been
revised in design as part of this application’s consideration to omit the glazed upper
sections, now reading as modular vestibules around the doorways. This now allows
for the original dimensions of the rooms to be more readily appreciated, including a
set away from the adjacent chimney breast to the ground floor (R013). To the first
floor (RO10), the lobby has been re-orientated so that the chimneybreast and
fireplace remain legible within a single space. The re-designed proposals allow the
architectural character and features of the spaces, including cornices and fireplaces,
to be more easily read. It is acknowledged that the lobbies resulted from efforts to
avoid lobbies to the main staircases. Whilst the ground floor lobby would result in
minor harm to the plan form, this would be to a lesser degree than the initial
scheme. The first-floor alteration would be formed in a room already greatly
disrupted by partitions. Overall, their installation would result in than less substantial
harm to the historic character of the building but at a minor level. The harm is
reversible and outweighed by the bringing of the building back into viable use.

Other New Openings

5.11 With the exception of the door openings proposed for the mezzanines and the
related staircase, proposed new openings result in a loss of fabric but would have
only minor less than substantial harm impact on the special interest of the building,
resulting in negligible change to the circulation areas, this harm is outweighed by the
public benefits of bringing the building into use. The reinstatement of the main
ground floor room in the Blake Street range by removal of a 1930’s partition would
reflect a positive change to the building, better revealing its significance. Revised
plans now propose to uncover two fireplaces which have been historically
concealed.

Structural Interventions

5.12 In addition to some minor structural repair work, strengthening of the floors is
required in some areas to support the additional floor loading resulting from the

Application Reference Number: 25/00532/LBC Item No: 5b



Page 48

proposed use. The structural works have been designed by a conservation
accredited structural engineer. All of the new work is additive and is concealed
within the existing floor structure. It is considered this aspect of the scheme would
preserve the significance of the building.

Access From Blake Street

5.13 It is also proposed to widen an existing opening between the Blake Street
entrance and the adjoining room on the ground floor to improve circulation (noted is
that this accessible entrance also serves Ask Italian, which is located within the
Assembly Rooms on Blake Street to the southwest). Reference to the 1860 plans
suggest that the existing opening has been narrowed slightly from its original form.
The alteration would result in some loss of fabric and a further erosion of the cellular
plan form. However, by widening the existing doorway instead of forming a new
central opening, the loss of fabric would be minimised and the sense of enclosure
maintained. In accordance with paragraph 215 of the NPPF, this less than
substantial harm should be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal,
including securing its optimum viable use. It is considered that the public benefit of
improving this access outweighs the harm identified.

Lift

5.14 The proposed lift would be an overtly modern addition located in minor rooms
at the back of the Museum Street range. On the ground floor, the room where the lift
would be located is currently subdivided to provide toilets and an access lobby
leaving little of the original layout of the room legible. The first-floor room, however,
retains its original layout. Whilst the location of the lift seeks to minimise the impact
on the special interest of the building by not locating it in the more prestigious
rooms, the installation would further erode the historic layout of the first floor,
although the impact on the ground and later second floor would be negligible. The
alteration would have the benefit of making the upper floors accessible, in addition
assisting with finding a viable use for the building, for which historically public
access to at least the first floor would have been required. It is considered that the
public benefit of improving this access outweighs the less than substantial harm
identified.

Mezzanine

5.15 The mezzanines would be formed in two rooms at the front of the Museum
Street range, originally a committee room and audit office. The rooms are currently
subdivided, although retain their high ceilings and cornices, reflecting their original
status. The scheme would reverse the subdivision of these spaces, but at the same
time the new additions, occupying nearly half the depth of each room would
dominate the respective spaces. The introduction of the structures would erode
evidence of the original layout of the building and the private administrative function

Application Reference Number: 25/00532/LBC Item No: 5b



Page 49

of the rooms, harming the illustrative, historic value of the building. The introduction
of new doorways at second floor level availing access to the mezzanines would
compound the loss of evidence of the design and purpose of the building. The
principal access to the mezzanines would be by a new stair rising from the first floor.
Whilst the staircase would be located in a less prestigious part of the building, the
addition would further dilute evidence of the layout of the building and how it was
intended to be used, further harming its character. It is understood that the
mezzanines are proposed so that the bookshop could provide a wider range of
books to be stocked. However, this is not considered clear and convincing
justification for the resulting harm.

5.16 Policy D5 of the Local Plan states that proposals affecting a Listed Building, or
its setting will be supported where they preserve, enhance or better reveal those
elements which contribute to the significance of the building or its setting, and help
secure a sustainable future for a building at risk. Harm to the significance of a Listed
Building or its setting will be permitted only where this is outweighed by the public
benefits of the proposal.

5.17 Paragraph 20 of Government Planning Practice Guidance for the Historic
Environment states that public benefits may follow from many developments and
could be anything that delivers economic, social or environmental objectives as
described in paragraph 8 of the NPPF. Examples of heritage benefits may include
the sustaining or enhancing the significance of a heritage asset and the contribution
of its setting, reducing or removing risks to a heritage asset, or securing the
optimum viable use of a heritage asset in support of its long-term conservation.
Paragraph 215 of the NPPF states that where a development proposal will lead to
less than substantial harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset, this
harm should be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal including, where
appropriate, securing its optimum viable use.

5.18 Whilst the application points to commercial viability as the reason for installing
the mezzanine, no robust evidence has been presented as part of the application
process to specifically demonstrate that this proposal would not be viable without
the proposed alteration. The Heritage, Design and Access Statement submitted
states that the mezzanine would enable 38 additional bookcases within the shop,
facilitating an additional 7,800 books. The supporting statement remarks that the
commercial success of the building is entirely driven by the number of bookcases
that can be installed, which depend on a suitable number of walls for cases to be
affixed to. The case is made that a reduced stockholding limits the number of and
variety of different subjects available, as well as more limited floorspace.

5.19 The applicant engaged in pre-application advice, in which it was advised that
formation of the mezzanine could not be supported. More widely, an active effort
has been made to respond to wider pre-application discussions, to better reveal the
significance of the asset, such as the reinstatement of much of the original

Application Reference Number: 25/00532/LBC Item No: 5b



Page 50

fenestration and partial reinstatement of parts of the earlier floor plan. However, the
proposed addition of the mezzanine and associated staircase would represent
serious harm to the character of the building. The case made by the applicant is
understood in that increasing the prospective capacity of the building sets
reasonable objectives to maximise viability of the building within this use, however it
is not considered that the harm to the fabric of the building is outweighed by such
case. No financial details have been put forward to suggest that the development
proposal, in the absence of the mezzanine’s formation, would amount to an unviable
business proposal. Further, the building may otherwise serve a variety of alternative
uses which may not require or propose such alterations.

5.20 The building has been vacant since 2021 and the proposed new use for the
building is welcomed. The proposals are more widely well designed and have
sought to minimise impact on the character of the building where possible, based on
a thorough assessment of its significance as a designated heritage asset. The
building’s built form and internal layout remain largely legible, along with historic
joinery and plasterwork which reflect the hierarchy of its internal spaces. It is
considered that installation of the second-floor mezzanine, as a result of its
subdivision of the existing committee room and audit office, would undermine the
hierarchy of its internal spaces and amount to serious less than substantial harm to
the heritage asset. In contrast to other alterations which may result in some modest
harm to the character of the building, there is no clear and compelling convincing
justification for this alteration. Whilst serious, the degree of harm is less than
substantial. It is not considered that the degree of harm is justified by public benefits
which would derive from the scheme.

6.0 CONCLUSION

6.1 The proposed formation of the mezzanine structure and associated doorways
and staircase would erode evidence of the original layout of the building and the
private administrative function of the rooms, harming the illustrative, historic value of
the building. Whilst the degree of harm overall from the scheme would be less than
substantial, nevertheless paragraph 212 of the NPPF requires this harm to be given
considerable importance and weight and given the duties of the decision maker
under S66(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990
special regard is to be had to the desirability of preserving the building and its
setting. It is not considered that the public benefits deriving from the proposed
change of use and those works noted above which enhance the special interest of
the building would outweigh the harms to the listed building. The development is
therefore considered to harm the special architectural or historic interest of the listed
building and would conflict with guidance contained in the National Planning Policy
Framework, Policy D5 (Listed Buildings) of the City of York Local Plan, and Section
16(2) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.

7.0 RECOMMENDATION: Refuse
Application Reference Number: 25/00532/LBC Item No: 5b



Page 51

1  The proposed formation of the mezzanine structure and associated doorways
and staircase would erode evidence of the original layout of the building and the
private administrative function of the rooms, harming the illustrative, historic value of
the building. Whilst the degree of harm overall from the scheme would be less than
substantial, it is not considered that the public benefits deriving from the proposed
change of use would outweigh the harm. The development is therefore considered
to harm the special architectural or historic interest of the listed building and would
conflict with guidance contained in the National Planning Policy Framework, Policy
D5 (Listed Buildings) of the City of York Local Plan, and Section 16(2) of the
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.

8.0 INFORMATIVES:

Contact details:
Case Officer: Owen Richards
Tel No: 01904 552275

Application Reference Number: 25/00532/LBC Item No: 5b



This page is intentionally left blank



£20/000oZ/LBL -1 Museum street, York YO /D |
Page 53

S5t Wilfrid's
Catholic

Tta 17
Stonegate Co
bonard's Assembly Rooms Ea
spital
mains aﬂ

pttt oy

71212025, 12:25:26 PM

Development Management City of York Council West Offices Station Rise



This page is intentionally left blank



LJ"‘; CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Planning Committee B

25/00532/LBC
1 Museum Street

Planning Committee B Meeting — 15 July 2025

GG abed



Page 56

Site Plan

Planning Committee B Meeting — 15 July 2025



Existing Ground

Floor Plan

BLAKE STRERT

[ S . Lo
Pl SOW et o e Bting Contses
B3 GOSN e o e Bting Contses

it

‘I:I“‘"‘“"'"

Pt sre
L

i

IE

. .
I
e Y L
.......... B Y O | ot
=== pEEEE =
- | | -
Il
:::'..‘! !:'_—_::__ _____ 1
Siore ! Swongroom |I=
= e —

_______________________

L

SIREEN

©

Planning Committee B Meeting — 15 July 2025

1 Museum Street, York, Y01 70T
Ground Floor Plan s Existing

B i s i g et 3 B BRI

D, 175 1000 P2
me  PLANMING

[

D ZTOAM

/S abed



Proposed Ground
Floor Plan

BLAKE STREET

RN

it b B o

e waka

timp 0t { Dmmokton

MUSEUM SIMEED

Planning Committee B Meeting — 15 July 2025

Mk Wiy Aaliect,

cm
cm
(2.1
o

Hang 0 prepomac werks
Crmnd Pl

Irusill s sl b cuphoards.

Fiaor iy TP 002 - 004
‘nml i wap m ey
el i pas
‘penrg ard e Rk i 175 1900
Mo maang wash, wndow i mamo mosom panng b + maisl rew motal ama
maemrsiary gy Heler i 175 TI08
Sreml r Bk eans ey mars. Heter = 175 300
Finhang exming frrber panclied doo
opiser exmtg mestem barers Meler 3 175 318

sl et sl e i 3t 3 form sacragn M 1% 1008
Fa xhat @onsng tamber penoled oo

il e sl e glanng door oymerm -« benkght Heler s 175 1000

Make geer! plrster e

S i Pt 53 T WA 8P P £ e pancbed
rual o zaney s s ruatex

il e plasionm b snd locally sier modoem conomim oo o o el

Foarm i 3o apering 15t weten cxmtng wal

PO N OpEnng wehan mng wall

Hemratsie orgnal door SpEnang 10 X0 XH0ngrmoT.

ezl npe frn i partenn walla weh-hegh-evel ey Moter oo 173 0000 - T2

tinarg exming e parched sy
Finaztsbinh muEng smbor Pl door operng

o ahus mowing hmhar paneied door

Irestall e sl AT Iy Gieng io s windos Mt i 175107

P farxh i mmprrded floom

el partons s forn non-ongesl penng

Gy femoe
/"v'v'v'x""./"v'v R
G Heratain crgal froplec wd mrrand |

N S
Canand
Full pusrbang upgracs wnd mincireal imes
penzik
o .
Vremvualy it o ey

1 Muszum Street, York, Y01 70T g 175 2070 P2
Ground Floor Plan as Praposed e PLANMING
L S
drmesiny P g srvars v o s s
[y nm Sty " o -

ot oo

s +

gG abed



Existing First
Floor Plan

4+

| S |
=
|
B
<
o -

[N Evcrpims L
Pl e o |t Bl Coataa

PP LT ket ke | et Bt Gk @ a -—
L 1

Planning Committee B Meeting — 15 July 2025

‘ Maik Wiy Aocbiticss

1 Museum Street, York, YO0 70T
First Floar Plan as Exsting

e ity 8 it i i kb by S g by Bk

[

65 abed



+
(e )
o)

+

Key 10 progpcomad works

Proposed First

oz Fioharg exminyg mber panefied dooe Heler o 17% 108

I I o Fioplace exmirg modern harcrt Heder @ 179 3100
Floor Plan -

ros g et
= 1mmo

tos Irntalt e back s ey mews. Neter % 175 100

tor Maratatr cegnal Tor gperg

tou ratalt e e M ¢ Sppcrng wek

tos Feter 1 1733110
+ams

tuo Mk 12 175 3103 « e

tn e e cperng we g wall + Fatal e brarg Mok 19 1753710 + 3715

m omoe operng Mefer 1o 173 3115

B e o e Sl

m 3 Heder o 175 2013 - 4.

2 ol e bt e pncliod oo Mk 13 1AL - I

e 3 s cobrg trmber peled docr

(3 Tower mah o ratal rew
metsl irame secarchey ghurg. Heler o 175 108

v Hoter 15 175307

PR A M S S S e —

(2 Haratate fvopiecn wxl mercnd |

P AN NN AN AN,

Cenard

ratalanon
ot
Meckeraron ot @awsng wirdows + plamssr fesha.

|

[, — "
ol X AP ([ cam [ Mark Wiay Aoctitics: 1 Muscum Street, York,YO1 7DT G 175 3011 P2
R R L S p—— o e ° . First Floor Plan as Proposed wae  PLANNING
- tarp o | Desmoktons: L ] ate Smas

L

o G Wi Py g v o cvsicon o o Ahtuct. Chneasicas, | e 1100

A Ve y s A T s, s o] (e W e

iy - -

Cowa 2mas +
Planning Committee B Meeting — 15 July 2025

09 abed



Existing Second

Floor Plan

Page 61

[ S

175 Wz P2
e PLANNING

1 Museum Street, York, Y00 DT
Socond Fioor Plan as Existing

M iy 0 g W et ks by sttt sk e Bt
ey it e SV Vel s B Tl Chmitiid,
[ " Y ——

aTn

T S e —

Mtk Wiy Aactatics
& Pl Sttt

Rt B 3070

R

st i—————y
frem—

i bl Bl Comsses
LR b o | g o

i

Planning Committee B Meeting — 15 July 2025



Proposed Second
Floor Plan

FEEmmmmm——
1
Ll

i

o

Flarinny Cuttiiniuee b ivieeurly — 10 July £Us0

Mk Wiy ocbatiocss

s St

N
Second Floor:

sm
s
sm
sS04
EY

517

Canars

il e sty g mnd rasho:

il g puarizon wenll ancd oo st i form WE Fiaer fo 1751908,

rstall e plastrm b + mpportng wl

e nie R withun g wal -+ rotel Bmberbreng. Mo 1o 175370 + 375
ruiall e tadber e tmecmn o bt Soor Hisker o 1753115+ J16

rusiall e bk cama oy Soma. Heber i 175 7008

sl e e arenn atructun and bsboieca. el o 175 3107

Fomm el ool

Fatm n oo cporng iz i wihin msing vall

Famows modem trmier doonn nd il door openg:

il e puartzon well ancd oo ast. Hiker i 175 TIE

st e knchen PTG A et

Moo modem trmbar doornt

Famows modem part onwal

rsiall e b Sioor minscuns with sk osk boaed Soor frh. Haler i 175 Y196
Mioplace: Crpet o et ke shaat oo s

el s ke Sk B Sioer trosh.

Ful piurmang pgrads and siecinesl wes. ntalion i M- g EEecs D when

(303 ) pooeen

Hesincrraton o massng wincows: + famar inate
Provvczushy afimanc] hrm rmine dooes in bn axsssssd and upgracied o nocmosry i prds HIK mng

1 Museum Street, York, Y00 70T Dy 175 2012 P1
Socond Floor Plan as Propased e PLANMING

s Pl i e s s by s eralng e s R

B TPy S—

e el T, Lo, Tk (L] [ il et

0 e e o i e 0 Cor w5 Rl 0 [ ITm +

29 abed



Existing Section

Koy Pan

€9 abed



Proposed Section

Page 64

10




Existing Section

[ [EETE : bong walls
| ‘

LGN it b | e Rt o

11

G9 abed



Proposed Section

T mumm

II IH i

™

W

0

]

I
— -l

. N

.

i

12

99 abed



Proposed
Mezzanine

+

0 Marmaning Secsin as piopecaed 1725

i ",
f \__
B o - s Fu | ‘_kt‘/ Y
ES T=Iny ) k_ : I T it
™ol
I'--_Ir ‘I’ :-: o
= A
'-JI \ ‘-r—i— H r-u-m_
%, i g
| crrber beskos srarm \_.j._ ' :
T : :
=i 0 H
| [ B .'—@
]

sucium i ba concasted .q (] H
TR pr] se— | | L H
! } H
_____________________ orerart - 1% sivel stnchen
e B ‘corcried bohnd
Jr — —{ famba bance
[ [ Bl
-1r ____________________________________ - I

: m_
i i
N MM 1 -

NI A N e

02 Mezzanioe secton deabs 15

. |
cak handirad cappng =
Eakeziada

— T ] T —
wthun bman of bookraars: -

RN N P

1 Museum Street, York, ¥01 DT
_ i

Fr—
Rt Bt S P T —— i

Lo T . e Lo
[ i . i it 10l D el o

[r— - [ Y]

Doy 175 3NT P2
e PLANMING

/9 abed



Proposed
Mezzanine

As existing section cut through the former committee room.

Planning Committee B Meeting — 15 July 2025

14

89 abed



0% RS Fire Lobiy section i peoposed 1235

e o

g

L

L
Bozk Foom 04

R e

Wy

T

Meresr HIDWD ek

Hockoaan ganeny uns

]

coling
i
wal

B
Firs Loy

raizsiad e
et !
DeTLE

-

Firwe akxiong i
maich mwmmrg

L g skrang o
rarran na

I

I

e

g
&
[
B

A s i

T

DOLF
g
i of Emang

L A

ol A0S Fiew: Lobly plan i oroposed 1.25

Proposed Fire

Lobby

e D0 partton

[ L]
T

B R e T P

P

e

S

Pt

R R R N W N

R T T T T T T T e,

—,

e e,

.

Fuming aimng =
T e

—

P
b of parion wal

|

15

Planning Committee B Meeting — 15 July 2025



Proposed Fire
Lobby

-~ +

o A0 P Lty ol s, piopecceed 125 | 02 R0 Fire Loy Section & pioposed 1.25 03 RN Fie: Lostibey' Siasticds i poogosed 135

B Tl el e E E P e T Y e

il

|

|

|
13
i
| &

-

|

|

|

|

|

1
1 1
: 4
1 :
. ' 4
b H %
Y | — | I L
ey i 1 &
\, ' 1
p i 9
1 4
( :
:’ Ln-m : z:

g ————— =3
I} [ e maich uminkg : Py Uit 4
b Herw MW e ) ! ]
N ey | — A A D A AT A A )
7 - one ; nno ! e mrcheran 4
y = HITD s H 4
. f S i : ===
( & o rasted | Hew HIE 4
( : ke kg )
( e ! )
(, -1;— Fiarw arstutrevs 1o H 4
¢ machomsing ! )]
i ]
) | herw FLOK partmmen i <|
& I e ! nmo 3
1 | I ; e - ,
O 0 - ! p—— s )
i FErTep— 3 H B B ]
; | o Pt LTI o [ = - )
L S | )
LN - = = — (
:> I -4 e H Mew HID 3
y A 1 P wall 4
( - ' 4
& | o ' — )
( ; i 3
- 1 )
¢l B 2
4 R - | 9
i N e e i (11} 4
Panabgd door : 7 L \I
* i AN ! ‘ 5
L 5 = — 9
¢ - g ; J
Y | I ——— ! N siorir 1 Firmee HLIEH it 4
L rormam H mraich mamrg o e d
1 Pt

L Intsmeacom arab 1o W
{ @ @ : oo of parson wall ¢

. i
L I q
R A A A A A A P A A A A P A A P A A P A A A

Planning Committee B Meeting — 15 July 2025 16

0/ abed



Proposed Fire

Lobby

T

| ry—

-

]

v
=

IT

}{!\r-"ﬁ

't\...._.._..

] ) Sy ——
P i B

Fman ow b

e
-
=
—
e
Bk
il
4'-. 1
- u
1 ]
e e s
e
—

Planning Committee B Meeting — 15 July 2025

T/ obed

17



Existing &

Proposed Roof

Plan

Page 72

18

ting — 15 July 2025

Planning Committee B Mee



Proposed
Structural
Alterations
Ground Floor

SLEEFER 'WALL

GROUND FLOOR GA SHOWING PROPOSED STRUCTURAL INTERVENTIONS

Planning Committee B Meeting — 15 July 2025

STRJCTURAL LEGEND

= EXIETING FLOOR JOIST SPEM

[E7) PROPCSED STEEL - 203 UCSECTION 25T
WITHN DETTH OF EXSTING FLOOR.

PROPCERD ETEEL - 152 UC SECTION 2ET AEOVE
FLDOR LEVEL WITHIM EQCK CASE PUNTH

*  ETEE SPUCELOCETION

J:g_ PRE-CAST LINTEL TOSUIT THICKMEESS OF WALL
‘CONETRLUCTION. EPEC TO BE FINALIZED.

EX03TING LINTEL - T0 52 CONFRUED

PROPOEED TIVEER INTERVENTION. ETRENGTHENING
OF EXISTMG JOISTS. DETAL TO BE DEVELOPED.

B =osTmcwmaLL coNSTRUCTION
NEW WALL TOLFT SHAFT - S1me SLOCK. TOEE
GRS FULLOWING REVIEW OF LIFT PROPOSALS,

EE oW WTERNAL PARTITION T ARCHITECTS DETALS.

="} ERENNG STRUCTURE BELOW TO BE UTLIZED TO
beaot SUFPORT BOOK CLZEWEIET.

PROPCEED INFILL OF EXESTING DOOR SPERTURES
FND NEW LAONRY NIES TOISE TEED TO ADMSCENT

DETELE OF PROPOEED STRUCTURE ARDIUND LFT 3HAFT ARE
T2 5E DEVELOPED FOLLOWING A REVIZW OF THE SUPPLERS
UFT PROPOEALE.

L1 PERIMETER BOOKCASES ASSUMED T BE SECURED TO
FAOIACENT LOAD BEARING MASONRY TOLESSEN POTENTIAL
LICAD OM EXIETMG FLOOR JCIETE.

ASSAFTIONS RE: LOADING

THLL BOOWCASES AESUMED TO BE APPRIZX. 3.3m IN HEGHT
WITH 118G, 200em DEEP SHELVES. ALL JOINERY ASSUMED TO
EE 1" THCX PANE

DENEITY OF BOOKE TAGEN AS B.5kNém’ FOR DENSELY STORED
AND KESUMET) T DOCUPY 5% OF ALL BOGCK SHELF 8PACE.

19

¢/ abed



Proposed
Structural
Alterations Firs
Floor

HALLWAY WALL BELOW

FIRST FLOOR GA SHOWING PROPOSED STRUCTURAL INTERVENTIONS

Planning Committee B Meeting — 15 July 2025

STRUCTURAL LEGEND

s EMETING FLOCR JOIST 278N

[F7] PROPCSED ETERL - 203 UC SECTION 56T
WITHIN DEPTH OF EXIETMCFLOOR

E_W[EEJSTEE_JEILESEZMSE”B&E
FLOOR LEVEL WITHIN BOOK CAZE PLINTH

*  STEEL SALCE LOCATHN

ﬂ PRE-CAST LINTEL TO EUIT THICKNESE OF WALl
COMETRUCTION. SPEC TO BE FINALIEED.

E_Hmuﬂmmmum

PROPOEED TRSER INTERVENTION. STRENGTHENNG
OF EXIETING JOIETE. DETAIL TOSE DEVELOPeED.

[ =sosmweme covsTRUCTION

NEWWALL TOLIFT SHAFT - 25mm ELOCK. TO EE
BCREED FOLLOWING REVEW OF UFT PROPCSALE.

@ MEW INTERMAL PERTITION TO ARCHITECTS DETAILE.

="} ERETING ETRUCTURE BELOW TO BE UTLIZED TO
b=t SUPRORT BOCK CAEEWEIHT.

PROPJEED INFILL OF EXIETING DDOR APERTURES
AND WEW MAEONRTY NIES TO/SE TED TO ADWCENT
MAEONRY

NOTES

DETAILE OF PROPOSED STRUCTURE AROUND LIFT SHAFT ARE
T BECEVELOPED FOLLOWING A REVIEW OF THE SUPPLERS
UFTPROPCEALE.

AL PERMETER BODKCAZES ASSUMED TO BE SSCURED TO
BDJACENT LOAD BEARNG MASCNRY TO LESSEN POTENTIAL
LICAD ON EXISTING FLOCR JOISTS.

AESUMETIONS RE: BOOKCASE LOADING
TELL BOOKCASES KE21BMED TOEE APPRON 3.3m IN HEIGHT

WITH 11N, 200mm DEER EHELVES. ALL JOINERDY ASSUNED TO
EE 1" THCK FINE.

DENSITY OF BIO0KE TENEN A% § 5o FOR DENSELY STORED
AN KESUMED TO DCCUPY B0 OF ALL BOOK BHELF SRACE.

20

v/ abed



Proposed
Structural
Alterations
Second Floor

SECOND FLOOR GA SHOWING PROPOSED STRUCTURAL INTERVENTIONS

Planning Committee B Meeting — 15 July 2025

STAUCTURAL LEGanD

e EXETING FLOOR JOUST EPEN

PROPOZED NEW JOIST SPAN. Slem X 225mm T2
JOUETS AT 400mm CTRE - SIZE TO BE CONFIRMED.

PROPOEED ETEEL - 202 150RHETO
EDGE OF MEZZANINE - SI2E T BE COFRMED.

+  STEE EPLICELOCATION

PRECAET LINTEL TO SUIT THICKNESE OF WLl
CONSTRUCTICN. SPEC TO BEFMALISED.

E HEW STAIR APERTIURE TRMAMER. ADDITIONAL STRUCTURE

WILL 55 REQUIRED TO ACCOMUODATE GALLERY AS SHOWN.

REDUCED INTSRWENTION IF LANDING GALL FRY QMITTED

PROPCSED TIMEER INTERVENTION. STRENGTHENING
OF EXISTING JOIETE. CETAL TOSEDEVELOPED,

) ExsTivG WaLL OONSTRUCTICN

E NEW WALL TO LIFT SHAFT - 25mm ELOCK. TO EE
HEREAD FOLLOWING REWISIN OF LIFT PROPCISAL S,

ﬁ NEN INTERMEL PARTITION TOARCTECTS DETAILS.

™"} EXISTING STRUCTURE BELOW TO BEUTILIZED TO
wadd FPROAT SO0 CASE WEIGHT.

PROPOEED INFILL OF EXISTING DOOR APERTURES
NI NEW MASONRY NIBS TO BE TIED TOUADUSCEN
MEEONRY

MOTES

DETAILE OF PROPOSED STRUCTURE ARIDUND LIFT BHAFT ARE
T BEE DEVELOPED FOLLOWMNG A REVEW OF THE SUPPLIERE
LFTPROPORAE

&l PERIMETER SBO0RCASEE ARSI MET TO BE SECURED TO
ADUACENT LOAD EEARING WMASONRY TO LESSEN POTENTIAL
LOAD OM EMETIMNG FLODR JOIETE.

ASSUMFTICNS RE- BOCKCASE LOATING

TALL SOCMCAEEE AZSUNET TO EE APPROK. 3.3m IN HEIGHT
WITH 1M 200mm DEER SHELVES. f11 JOINERY SSEUMED TO
8E 1" THICK HINE.

DEMSITY OF BOOKS TAKEN AS 55N/ FOR DENSELY STORED
AND ASSUMED TO QOCUERY 90% OF ALL BOOK SHELF SPRCE.

21

G/ abed



Proposed Sash

Window

Alterations

O Sash window aireeton as proposed 125

O Sash window section i proposed 125

™

. —
Wl 1k
1
H
v J" e bz archrran iobe
[ 1 "ot
] ]
3
I i Exming shufian o b
et
=l a1 -
[
Sl b waid
— e TR m—
p— b p—
— N —
b
Fioawr maial ramad
macoreiary ghmg
] o

i .

' i 1

i [

3 . amiser
gl b et
ri inxs mm aaah,

i
- LY
¢ —
I
[ Exmmtng mcwios and
[ [r— [Pk o/ e
— - —
=TT —— o —— in coneesl iciminr
P
[ ™
O3 Sash window plan as proposed 1225 | |
I— | I
trmher
gl barn. anciraisd
| & -
P
sz sreiary panng

Feawe rrctal Hrasmed
arcTeEiary g

e plam io zash

issang bars and watal
e gl in s

Flanoss modam fmbar
giacang bars and raial

Flamzen modem mbar

O Sash windlow secton detal s roposed 15

|l

n'}._ b arcoretay
rre——r—

‘glarg bars and raisl
e gl 53 moh

Iruxtsl v wngin gy
m pomrng mh

o bty i s
frama

Fl

maich wrsios fama
L

9/ abed

05 Saah window plan detad & proposed 15

e phaex 1o zaxh

Planning Committee B Meeting — 15 July 2025

22



Page 77 Agenda Item 5c

COMMITTEE REPORT

Date: 15 July 2025 Ward: Fulford And Heslington

Team: East Area Parish: Fulford Parish Council

Reference: 24/01633/FULM

Application at: York Designer Outlet St Nicholas Avenue York YO19 4TA

For: Change of use of amenity field to temporary (3 years) seasonal

(November and December) overflow car park for the use of
employees only

By: The DROC York Limited Partnership
Application Type: Major Full Application
Target Date: 15 August 2025

Recommendation: Refuse

1.0 PROPOSAL
The Site

1.1. The application site (“the Site”) is a parcel of land approximately 1.1 hectares
in size. The Site is located to the south of the Designer Outlet shopping complex.
The Site can be accessed from the existing Designer Outlet perimeter road via an
existing vehicular access.

1.2. The Site is primarily an undeveloped green field. A small section of the site
currently contains storage containers and is being used to store rubble and building
products. This use of the land is not permitted by any planning permission and
therefore is unauthorised development.

1.3. The Site is bound to the east, south and west by undeveloped green fields. To
the north of the Site is a mature tree belt, which sits between the Site and the
Designer Outlet perimeter road. Fulford Community Orchard is located within this
tree belt to the north-east of the Site. A single track road runs along the south of the
Site which provides access to a farmstead.

Background

Application Reference Number: 24/01633/FULM Item No: 5¢



Page 78

1.4. The application states that the proposed development is required to address
parking problems at the Designer Outlet particularly in the run up to and over the
Christmas period.

1.5. The application states that there are currently approximately 2700 car parking
spaces at the Designer Outlet. The Designer Outlet employs approximately 1,600
employees, albeit approximately 600-700 employees are on site at any one time. At
busier periods, such as Christmas and Bank Holidays, the number of employees
can rise to 800 — 900 which increases the demand for car parking spaces.

1.6. The application states that whilst many employees are encouraged to travel
via public transport, and do so, many members of staff have to travel to the
Designer Outlet by car particularly over the Christmas period when shift work is the
norm.

1.7. As well as the shopping and food offer, the Designer Outlet hosts the Winter
Wonderland, Ice Rink and Summer Beach attraction. These attractions are often

located on some of the existing car park which reduces the number of car parking
spaces available. These attractions also create the need for additional employees.

1.8. The application states that approximately 200-500 of the car parking spaces at
the Designer Outlet are occupied by people using the Park and Ride facility. Many of
which are commuters and therefore the spaces are occupied by a single vehicle for
the majority of the day.

The Proposed Development

1.9. The applicant is proposing a temporary change of use of the Site from
agriculture to a car park for the staff working at the Designer Outlet. The temporary
car park would measure approximately 91 metres by 78 metres.

1.10. The applicant proposes that the Site would be used as a temporary car park
initially for a period of 3 years between November and December. The proposals
would provide 340no. additional parking spaces.

1.11. The parking area would be gated and the parking would only be available for
staff. The area would be surfaced with compacted aggregate material with the
parking spaces denoted by the use of gravelled grids. Mobile lighting columns will
provided within the site, facing inwards, to illuminate the site during darkness 4pm-
9:30pm Monday-Saturday and 4pm-8pm on Sundays.

Application Reference Number: 24/01633/FULM Item No: 5¢



Page 79
Planning History

1.12. A planning application (Application Reference: 19/01969/FULM) for the
extension of the Designer Outlet Centre, relocation of the existing park and ride
facility and outdoor events space was withdrawn prior to determination in September
2024. At the time there was a holding response from Highways England requiring
further information.

1.13. In addition to this most recent planning application there have been several
planning applications approved over the years for temporary uses on the car park
including the ice rink, fun fair, summer beach and 12 hole golf putting course.

1.14. A permanent car wash facility was also approved in 2022 which is located on
part of the original car park.

1.15. More recently a similar application to the current proposal was considered
under reference 23/01147/FULM. The proposals considered under 23/01147/FULM
comprised of the temporary/seasonal change of use from an agricultural field to car
park broadly consisting of the same area of land that makes up these current
proposals. The 2023 application was withdrawn prior to formal determination.
However, it had reached a stage where a formal Officer recommendation of Refusal
had been made and published in advance of the application going before Planning
Committee. The recommended reasons for refusal included Green Belt, Highways,
Drainage, Ecology, Landscape Character and Amenity reasons.

2.0 POLICY CONTEXT

2.1. Planning law requires that applications for planning permission must be
determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations
indicate otherwise (section 38(6) Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004).

CITY OF YORK LOCAL PLAN

2.2. The York Local Plan was adopted by the Council on 27" February 2025,
together with any made neighbourhood plan and constitutes the statutory
development for the City of York.

2.3. Key relevant Local Plan Policies are:

DP1: York Sub Area
DP2: Sustainable Development
DP3: Sustainable Communities
Application Reference Number: 24/01633/FULM Item No: 5¢



Page 80

SS1: Delivering Sustainable Growth for York

SS2: The Role of York’s Green Belt

D1: Placemaking

D2: Landscape and Setting

D6: Archaeology

GB1: Development in the Green Belt

ENV2: Managing Environmental Quality

ENV4: Flood Risk

ENV5: Sustainable Drainage

T7: Minimising and Accommodating Generated Trips

2.4. The application site is located within a designated Neighbourhood Plan Area,
namely the area for the Fulford Neighbourhood Plan. This area was designated in
March 2015 enabling work to commence on the formulation of a Neighbourhood
Plan. At the time of writing no draft policies have been published and as such the
Neighbourhood Plan carries no weight in decision making.

NATIONAL PLANNING POLICY FRAMEWORK

2.5. The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) sets out the government’s
planning policies for England and how these are expected to be applied. The NPPF
is a material consideration in the determination of planning applications. Key
chapters and sections of the NPPF relevant to this application are as following:

- Chapter 6 Building a strong, competitive economy

- Chapter 9 Promoting sustainable transport

- Chapter 13 Protecting Green Belt land

- Chapter 14 Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal
change

- Chapter 15 Conserving and enhancing the natural environment

- Chapter 16 Conserving and enhancing the historic environment

3.0 CONSULTATIONS
INTERNAL

CYC HIGHWAY DEVELOPMENT CONTROL

3.1. Object. We agree with the comments of National Highways. Areas of the
existing parking are used for other things such as Christmas and summer activities
attracting additional visitors whilst removing parking. The outlet can control staff
parking, what incentives exist for staff to travel by sustainable modes.

Application Reference Number: 24/01633/FULM Item No: 5¢



Page 81

3.2. The site is privately managed. The indiscriminate parking which blocks buses
could be manged by the centre through parking stewards, fines. The additional
parking will provide no mechanism to stop more vehicles form accessing the site. A
full travel plan has not been developed. Does this indicate a lack of commitment to
improving sustainable travel modes.

CYC ECOLOGIST

3.3. No objections, subject to conditions. Statutory Biodiversity Net Gain
Conditions would apply. In addition to this a Habitat Management and Monitoring
Plan would be required and Construction Environmental Management Plan and
lighting plan.

3.4. Due to the scale of the Site, a letter report would be considered appropriate if
no ecological constraints are identified. However, a more detailed report will be
necessary if constraints are identified following the survey work.

CYC LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT
3.5. No comments received.

CYC PUBLIC PROTECTION
3.6. No objections but requests a condition to control the proposed car park
lighting.

CYC DRAINAGE ENGINEER

3.7. has confirmed that the type of surface proposed which is interlocking and solid
is 100% impermeable and therefore a surface water drainage scheme is required.

3.8. A surface water drainage scheme should be submitted prior to the
determination of the application in line with CYC Sustainable Drainage Systems
Guidance for Developers.

CYC ARCHAEOLOGY
3.9. No objections. Subject to conditions.

EXTERNAL
FULFORD PARISH COUNCIL

3.10. Object to the proposed development. A summary of the Parish Council’s
comments are as follows:

Application Reference Number: 24/01633/FULM Item No: 5¢



Page 82

Diversification has led to the loss of parking. It is evident that the applicants
own choices have contributed to the current traffic and parking impacts.
There would be Green Belt harm by virtue of introducing built form into the
landscape such as fencing, signage, lighting. This harms openness.

There would be additional light pollution.

NATIONAL HIGHWAYS
3.11. Recommend that the application should not be approved.

Further evidence is required to demonstrate that the existing situation is the
same now as it was in 2019 when the Transport Assessment was
submitted for the previous planning application.

The applicant should evidence that they have exhausted all options to
manage the traffic impact of staff trips via Travel Planning and workplace
measures.

Dependent upon residual traffic impact of the proposed development a
vison may be required in line with DfT Circular 01/2022.

The approach to preparing an interim travel plan before preparing a full one
following planning approval is not appropriate and contradictory to
requirements.

The applicant should provide firm commitments to promoting and
encouraging staff travel to the site by active travel and sustainable travel
modes.

The proposed modal shift targets are not consistent with the findings of the
2022 staff travel survey and should be revised.

The applicant should propose a comprehensive Travel Plan Monitoring and
management plan.

Survey evidence should be provided to validate that the proposed
development will no generate any increase in the level of traffic from the
development proposals.

Further clarification is required regarding the implementation and
enforcement of the development proposals.

OUSE & DERWENT INTERNAL DRAINAGE BOARD (IDB)

3.12. The board notes that the applicant is proposing permeable materials although
we not infiltration testing has failed. If permeable drainage is not suitable and
discharge to a watercourse is proposed the IDB would require details of what the
applicant is proposing to discharge to and the location of the proposed point of
connection. Details would also be required regarding discharge rate.

4.0 REPRESENTATIONS

Application Reference Number: 24/01633/FULM Item No: 5¢



Page 83

4.1. The application has been advertised via Site Notice and neighbour notification
letters and press notice. A total of 3.no objections have been received and 20.no
comments of support.

COUNCILLOR RAVILIOUS

4.2. Objects on the grounds that the proposals are Green Belt land. In addition to
citing the previous applications for increased car parking drew a holding direction
from Highways England due to the lack of capacity at the A64/A19 junction for
additional venhicle.

4.3. The Objections received can be summarised as follows:

- Clearly there is a serious problem with parking at the Designer Outlet. But
these proposals do not address the issue. The temporary proposal only
setting a precedent for something further down the line.

- | support the reasons for refusal given by others. In particular Green Belt
harm.

- The application is on Green Belt Land.

- Highways England have put a hold on previous applications due to a lack of
capacity at the A64/A19 junction.

4.4. The comments of support received can be summarised as follows. These
have been received from staff at the Designer Outlet and organisations including
Make it York, First Bus, York & North Yorkshire Chamber of Commerce and the
Member of Parliament for York Outer:

- ltis frustrating trying to find somewhere to park.

- Park and Ride is an issue as many people park their car at the outlet just to
save money from spending ridiculous amounts of money on parking in York
and may even actually shop at the outlet.

- The Ice Rink and Stalls take a lot of space up. Are they really needed.

- Additional parking is needed.

- Visitors to York will have an initial bad impression due to bus queues and
lack of management of the provision on approaching A roads.

- Travelling by bus is not an option as there is no direct service.

- This would ease congestion at the site. | use the Park and Ride and find
myself having to abandon the bus and walk during peak times.

- Provision of employee parking would help the economy.

- Park and Ride numbers have increased. This causes heavy traffic causing
delays for passengers. Preventing buses from being able to move freely.

Application Reference Number: 24/01633/FULM Item No: 5¢



Page 84

- The temporary car park is a sensible short medium-term measure to try
mitigate some of the transport issues during peak periods.
- The current situation is dangerous.

5.0 APPRAISAL

5.1. The key issues to consider in determining this planning application are as
follows:

- Green Belt

- Highways and Access

- Drainage & Flood Risk

- Ecology & Biodiversity

- Landscape Character & Visual Impact

- Air Quality & Land Contamination

- Residential Amenity

- Archaeology

Green Belt

5.2. Following the adoption of the Local Plan the boundaries of the York Green Belt
have now been formally defined. Policy GB1 of the Local Plan states that
inappropriate development will not be approved except in very special
circumstances. Policy GB1 then goes on to state that the construction of new
buildings is inappropriate development and states specific exceptions to this.

5.3. The application site is located to the South of the main Designer Outlet
building. The boundary of the Green Belt in this location comprises broadly of the
outer access road that encircles the centre. The main building and existing car parks
are excluded from the Green Belt. The land which surrounds the built extent of the
centre is within the Green Belt including the access road from the A19 roundabout.
The application site is wholly within the Green Belt.

5.4. The NPPF states that the fundamental aim of Green Belt policy is to prevent
urban sprawl by keeping land permanently open and that, the essential
characteristics of the Green Belt are its openness and permanence.

The Green Belt serves 5 purposes:

- to check the unrestricted sprawl of large built-up areas;

- to prevent neighbouring towns merging into one another;

- to assist in safeguarding the countryside from encroachment;

- to preserve the setting and special character of historic towns;
Application Reference Number: 24/01633/FULM Item No: 5¢



Page 85

- to and to assist in urban regeneration, by encouraging the recycling of
derelict and other urban land.

5.5. Inappropriate development is by definition, harmful to the Green Belt and
should not be approved except in very special circumstances (Paragraph 153 of the
NPPF). At Paragraph 154 the NPPF then goes on to outline a series exceptions
which are not considered to constitute inappropriate development within the Green
Belt; which are similar to those outlined in Policy GB1 of the Local Plan. The
development is not considered to accord with any of these exceptions.

5.6. The applicant argues that Paragraph 154 h) v. is relevant to the determination
of the application. This states, in outlining forms of development which are
appropriate within the Green Belt ‘Other forms of development provided they
preserve its openness and do not conflict with the purposes of including land within
it. These are: v. material changes in the use of land (such as changes of use for
outdoor sport or recreation, or for cemeteries and burial grounds.

5.7. Paragraph 155 of the NPPF states that the development of new homes,
commercial and other development in the Green Belt should also not be regarded
as inappropriate where all the following apply.

a) The development would utilise grey belt land and would not fundamentally
undermine the purposes (taken together) of the remaining Green Belt
across the are of the plan;

b) There is a demonstrable unmet need for the development of development
proposed;

c) The development would be in a susaintable location, with particular
reference to to paragraphs 110 and 115 of this framework; and

d) Where applicable the development proposed meets the ‘Golden Rules’
requirements set out in paragraphs 156-157 of the NPPF.

5.8. The application site is not regarded as constituting Grey Belt land. The
boundary of the Green Belt in this location very clearly achieves purpose a) of NPPF
Paragraph 143 (purposes of Green Belt) by keeping in check the overall sprawl of
the existing Designer Outlet complex; setting a defined envelope around the existing
site; historically set by the footprint of the former Hospital which used to occupy the
site. Furthermore one of the fundamental principles of the York Green Belt is to
preserve the setting and special character of the historic town. With one of the
identified features of York being the open approaches to the main urban area. In the

Application Reference Number: 24/01633/FULM Item No: 5¢



Page 86

case of the existing Designer Outlet complex, when the Green Belt boundaries were
being defined as part of the Local Plan process. In this location the land that was
regarded as being within the Green Belt was found to contribute to the formation of
an extended green wedge which covers a significant swathe of open land south of
A19, thus maintaining its relatively compact scale in the wider landscape. Given the
proximity of the A64 and Fordlands Road area to the North and Bishopthorpe Village
to the West, the extended green wedge also has a role in constraining development
from coalescing, maintaining the separate identity and visual separation of the
Designer Outlet distinct from other settlements. Furthermore the land to the south of
the Designer Outlet forms an important area of open land between the A19 and
B1222 Naburn Lane, creating a separation between the Designer Outlet and Naburn
village. Cumulatively therefore it is considered that the site and defined Green Belt
boundaries in this location also achieves purpose d) of the Green Belt purposes as
set out within Paragrpah 143 of the NPPF.

5.9. Furthermore paragraph 155 c) requires the development to be in sustainable
location with particular reference to paragraph 110 and 115 of the NPPF. Paragraph
110 requires the planning system to actively manage patterns of growth. Noting that
significant development should be focused on locations which are or can be made
sustainable, through limiting the need to travel. Paragraph 115 requires that in
assessing development it should be ensured that sustainable transport modes are
prioritised, safe and suitable access to the site can be achieved for all users, the
design of transport elements reflects current national guidance and that any
significant impacts from the development on the transport network can be cost
effectively mitigated to an acceptable degree through a vision-led approach.

5.10. The proposals are not considered to accord with Paragraph 155 c) as they
would be contrary to Paragraphs 110 and 115. The location of the development is
regarded as being unsustainable and as will be discussed in the highways section of
this report. The development presents significant impacts upon the transport
network and by its very nature fails to prioritise sustainable modes of transport.

5.11. Whether the proposed change of use preserves the openness and does not
conflict with the purposes of including land within the Green Belt is considered in the
following paragraphs.

5.12. Planning Policy Guidance refers to a number of matters that the courts have
iIdentified can be taken into account in assessing openness, which include: spatial
and visual aspects, duration of the development and remediability, and the degree
of activity generated. Spatially, a formally laid out car park of 1.1 hectares will have
an effect on the openness of the Green Belt by virtue of its footprint and occupation

Application Reference Number: 24/01633/FULM Item No: 5¢



Page 87

of up to 340 vehicles on a daily basis. Visually, the car park is unlikely to be seen
from the A19 given the dense field boundaries and only glimpses will be visible from
the Designer Outlet perimeter road, however, it will be prominent in view from
Lingcroft Lane, although it is acknowledged this is a single track road to a farmstead
which is limited in use. The proposed lighting, although proposed to be directional
facing, will increase the visual impact on openness significantly from an unlit open
agricultural field to a lit car park. It is acknowledged that the proposed car park is for
a temporary 3 year period and could be remediated back to its original state. The
activity in the form of traffic generation from approximately 340 cars is considered to
significantly effect the openness of the Green Belt.

5.13. In view of the above, on balance it is considered that a formally laid out car
park for approximately 340 cars, albeit on a temporary basis, would not preserve the
openness of the Green Belt and as referred to above in paragraph 5.7 conflicts with
at least 3 Green Belt purposes of including land within it, namely checking the
unrestricted sprawl of large built up areas, safeguarding the countryside from
encroachment and preserving the setting and special character of historic towns.
Therefore, the proposed development would be inappropriate development in the
Green Belt. The harm to the Green Belt as a result of this inappropriate
development weighs substantially against the proposal.

5.14. Very special circumstances will not exist unless this potential harm to the
Green Belt by inappropriateness, and any other harm resulting from the proposal is
clearly outweighed by other considerations. These other considerations will now be
assessed in the following paragraphs of this report and a conclusion on whether
very special circumstances exist, will be given at the end of this report.

Highway and Access

5.15. The proposed development would be accessed using existing means of
access from the wider highway network. The primary consideration of this
application centres on issues of demand and parking capacity. Policy T1 seeks to
minimise the need to travel and ensure that development provides safe, suitable and
attractive access for all transport users to and within it. Policy T7 seeks to manage
generated trips and where appropriate promote mitigation measures through tools
such as travel planning to reduce the number of trips generated and that any new
development can be safely accommodated on the local and strategic highway
network.

5.16. The NPPF requires development that will generate significant amounts of

movement to provide a Travel Plan and should be supported by a Transport

Statement or Transport Assessment so that the likely impacts of the proposal can be
Application Reference Number: 24/01633/FULM Item No: 5¢



Page 88

assessed (Paragraph 118 of the NPPF). A Travel Plan, and a Transport Statement
have been submitted with the application.

5.17. National Highways have been consulted on the application, given the close
proximity of the Site to the A64 and the A64/A19 roundabout junction which forms
part of the Strategic Highway Network, along with CYC Highways Development
Control.

5.18. National Highways have recommended that planning permission should not be
granted until further information has been provided. This stance is supported by the
Local Highway Authority. Further information has been requested in respect of
demonstrating that the existing situation is the same as it was back in 2019 during
earlier applications. There are also considered to be deficiencies in the submitted
Travel Plan namely that it is only an interim document which is contrary to guidance
and policy requirements. It is also not clear whether the applicant has exhausted all
options to manage the traffic impact of staff trips via travel planning and workplace
measures and the promotion of sustainable.

5.19. The approach taken by the applicant appears to be a very simplistic one. They
note that during peak periods that parking at the site is oversubscribed and as a
result vehicles end up parking on verges and areas of landscaping in an around the
site; so, their solution is to provide more parking spaces.

5.20. However, this approach and the documentation submitted with the application
fails to demonstrate that all other methods to resolve the situation have been
explored and exhausted. It has not been demonstrated that there is a current Travel
Plan in operation at the site to manage and influence the staff travel to resolve the
issue. Other options also exist to the site operator with regard to managing and
enforcing parking restrictions within the site. It would be within the operators’ gift to
enforce parking restrictions to prevent vehicles from parking on verges, to assist
with aiding the efficient flow of traffic, including Park & Ride buses during peak
periods.

5.21. National Highways have also highlighted the possible risk that the existing
issue of oversubscribed car parking could be acting to suppress demand currently;
people do not visit the site at peak times because they know it will likely be busy and
there will be insufficient parking. The proposals have the potential to release that
suppressed demand, in essence build more parking and more trips will be
generated. As such this would not resolve the current issue. It would likely
exacerbate the situation. No evidence has been provided to validate the applicant’s
assumption that the proposals will not generate an increase in the level of traffic
accessing the site. The risk of this increased demand is that it results in more trips
Application Reference Number: 24/01633/FULM Item No: 5¢



Page 89

being generated which places additional demand upon the local and strategic
highways network.

5.22. There is no evidence to demonstrate that the applicant has sought to manage
and influence staff travel demand to the site. Other factors such as the incremental
loss of parking areas for other temporary events or ancillary services also contribute
to the degradation of parking provision at the site or induce further demand.

5.23. It is acknowledged that the current situation creates issues for the smooth and
efficient operation of the Park and Ride at peak times. However, at this stage it is
not known whether the proposals would resolve this.

5.24. The areas of issue and concern raised by technical advisors during this
application are not new and are consistent with the comments made to previous
applications at the site. The information required has not been forthcoming from the
applicant suggesting that it cannot be provided or that they are unwilling to provide
it. In any event a holding direction such as the one issued by National Highways
prevents the Local Planning Authority from granting planning permission and we
would be obliged to refuse planning permission.

5.25. Given the lack of Transport information submitted with the application, the
impact of the development on the Highway is unable to be assessed. In view of this,
the development does not accord with the provisions of Paragraph 118 of the NPPF
and Draft Local Plan Policy T7.

Drainage & Flood Risk

5.26. Polices ENV4 and ENV5 of the Local Plan require that new development not
be subject to unacceptable flood risk and promote the use of sustainable drainage to
attenuate surface water flows on greenfield sites not exceeding the existing rate
prior to development. The NPPF at paragraph 181 requires that when determining
planning applications, a Local Planning Authority should ensure that flooding is not
increased elsewhere.

5.27. The Site is located within Flood Zone 1. Land in Flood Zone 1 has a low
probability of flooding from rivers and the sea. The Environment Agency maps
indicate that the Site does not experience surface water flooding.

5.28. Infiltration testing at the site has previously demonstrated that permeable

drainage measures will not work at the site. In previous applications work had

progressed to devise an engineered solution. This demonstrates that there will likely

be a suitable drainage solution which exists. In the event of granting planning
Application Reference Number: 24/01633/FULM Item No: 5¢



Page 90

permission it would be necessary to condition that prior to the commencement of
development details of the drainage solution are submitted for approval.

5.29. Itis considered that the proposed development would not give rise to
significant drainage or flood risk issues. The site is not considered to be at risk of
flooding nor would the proposals materially change the flood risk or flood
vulnerability of the site. It is considered that a suitable drainage solution could be
secured via condition. As such, subject to such conditions the proposals are
considered to accord with Policy ENV4 and ENV5 of the Local Plan and paragraph
181 of the NPPF.

Ecology & Biodiversity

5.30. Policy GI2 relates to biodiversity and access to nature. Paragraph 193 (d) of
the NPPF seeks to ensure development contributes and enhances the natural and
local environment by minimising impacts on and providing net gains for biodiversity,
including establishing coherent ecological networks that are more resilient to current
and future pressures. Development should achieve net gain in biodiversity (BNG) in
accordance with The Environment Act 2021 and national policy and contribute to the
recovery of priority species and habitats and new habitat creation.

5.31. BNG is mandatory under Schedule 7A of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 (as inserted by Schedule 14 of the Environment Act 2021). Developers must
deliver a BNG of 10%. Unless exempt, every planning permission granted pursuant
to an application submitted after 12 February 2024 is deemed to have been granted
subject to a pre-commencement condition requiring a Biodiversity Gain Plan to be
submitted and approved by the local planning authority prior to commencement of
the development.

5.32. The application was accompanied at submission by a Preliminary Ecological
Appraisal (PEA) & Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG) Assessment. The PEA has
concluded that the site comprises of broadleaved woodland to the north whilst
modified grassland in a poor condition dominates the site. None of the trees are
assessed as offering potential to support roosting Bats and no evidence of any
protected species has been recorded. There is the likelihood that the trees will
support nesting birds and therefore potentially impacted by the proposed tree
removal works; a total of 10.no trees are to be removed. These are situated
adjacent to the access point to the site. The PEA concludes that the development
would not give rise to any impacts upon protected species or habitats.

5.33. The submitted BNG metric indicates that a net gain of 10.07% in habitat units
and a 15.72% net gain in hedgerow units could be achieved on site. This is in
Application Reference Number: 24/01633/FULM Item No: 5¢



Page 91

accordance with Schedule 7A of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 which
requires a statutory biodiversity net gain of a minimum of 10%. The Biodiversity
Gain Hierarchy should be applied to avoid habitats of most value and where they
cannot be avoided; they should be maintained on site. The application site does not
contain habitats of special value that should be maintained. BNG is secured by an
informative on any decision together with a condition to submit a Biodiversity Gain
Plan prior to development commencing. The City Ecologist has reviewed the
information submitted and does not raise any objections or dispute to the
conclusions as established.

5.34. In reaching their conclusion the Ecologist has requested that a series of
conditions be attached to the granting of any planning permission. Requested
conditions include a Habitat Management and Monitoring Plan, and Construction
Environmental Management Plan, biodiversity enhancements and lighting plan.

5.35. Overall it is considered, subject to the recommended conditions. The
development would accord with the provisions of Policy GI2 of the Local Plan.

Landscape Character & Visual Impact

5.36. Policy D2 of the Local Plan states that development proposals will be
encouraged and supported where they amongst other things protect and enhance
landscape quality and character. The NPPF at paragraph 135 requires development
to be sympathetic to the local character and history, including the landscape setting.

5.37. The Site is part of an agricultural field which is located south of the Designer
Outlet Shopping Complex, and south of the mature tree belt which forms a strong
boundary between the shopping centre, car parks, perimeter access road, and the
open countryside.

5.38. The landscape around the Designer Outlet Shopping Complex is
characterised as flat and open, with large open fields to the north west and north
east and smaller fields to the south, interspersed with hedges and small blocks of
woodland. As referred to in the Green Belt section of this report, this open
countryside contributes to the historic character and setting of York, providing the
open approaches to the city.

5.39. Given the existing open countryside nature of the Site, it is considered that the
proposed development, albeit temporary, will have a harmful impact on this
landscape character.

Application Reference Number: 24/01633/FULM Item No: 5¢



Page 92

5.40. The proposed development does not accord with Policy D2 of the Local Plan
or paragraph 135 of the NPPF as the proposal will not protect or enhance the
landscape quality and character of the Site, the public experience of it or the positive
contribution it makes to the special qualities of York’s historic character and setting.

Residential Amenity

5.41. Policy ENV2 of the Local Plan and Paragraph 135 of The NPPF require that
proposals do not unacceptably harm the amenity of existing and future residents.

5.42. Acres Farm and Acres Bungalow are located south of the Site on Lingcroft
Lane. These are the closest neighbouring properties to the proposed development.
The primary sources of potential disturbance to these properties will be the external
lighting, in an otherwise unlit area and noise from vehicle movements and
associated impacts such as vehicle doors closing. These impact in their own rights
are unlikely to give rise to notable impacts upon residential amenity. As they will
likely be spread over the course of the day with any peaks being shortly before
opening and after closing of the outlet. In reviewing the proposals Pubic Protection
have not raised any concerns in this regard.

5.43. The parking area will be illuminated. In the event of granting planning
permission public protection have requested a condition which sets an upper limit for
the luminance of this lighting. This is considered to be appropriate. It is proposed
that the lighting will be motion sensitive and operated between 4pm and 9:30pm
Monday to Saturday and 4pm to 8pm on Sundays. It is also considered appropriate
to condition an hour of operation of the lighting to these hours. This will strike a
balance between providing suitable illumination for the safe operation of the car park
whilst also limiting the potential for disturbance by virtue of the external lighting.

Archaeology

5.44. Policy D6 of the Local Plan states that development proposals that effect
archaeological features and deposits will be supported where they are accompanied
by an evidence-based heritage statement describing the significance of the
archaeological deposits affected and that includes a desk-based assessment. The
application is supported by an archaeological statement and desk-based
assessment; which has been reviewed by the City Archaeologist.

5.45. The application site is known to be on the edge of a large prehistoric field

system and settlement which has been identified through various aerial mapping

projects. However, none have been archaeologically investigated. The proposed
Application Reference Number: 24/01633/FULM Item No: 5¢



Page 93

works will require the removal of topsoil from the site, limited levelling works,
excavation for drainage, cabling and landscaping.

5.46. The proposed works have the potential to impact upon any surviving
archaeological resource at the site as it will exist at a shallow depth as features cut
into the subsoil. The submitted archaeological assessment has been submitted. This
has identified the development site as in a low-lying previously marshy area in
between known areas of settlement. It identifies the ridge and furrow on site as
partially levelled. It also suggests the following programme of works as mitigation for
the scheme. These measures comprise of metal detecting survey prior to topsoil
strip. Archaeological strip and map exercise with provision made to include public
participation in cleaning and recording exposed surfaces and excavating samples of
features and deposits.

5.47. The City Archaeologist has reviewed this information and is content with the
approach that is proposed. However in the event of granting planning permission
they have advised that a condition should be included to secure a programme of
post-determination archaeological mitigation, excavation and evaluation with results
being deposited with the City of York Environmental Record.

Very Special Circumstances

5.48. As has been outlined within the Green Belt section of this report. The
proposals are considered to constitute inappropriate development within the Green
Belt. Therefore, in accordance with Policy GB1 of the Local Plan such development
can only be approved in very special circumstances. This is also reinforced by
Section 13 of the NPPF. The NPPF at paragraph 153 states that very special
circumstances will not exist unless the potential harm to the Green Belt by virtue
inappropriateness, and any other harm resulting from the proposal is clearly
outweighed by other considerations. Substantial weight is to be given to the harm to
the Green Belt.

5.49. With regard to the Very Special Circumstances advanced by the applicant
within their submission. They cite the significant benefits to the economy of the city
derived from the efficient operation of the Park and Ride and Designer Outlet. The
Local Planning Authority attribute moderate weight to these benefits.

5.50. In assessing other harm resulting from the proposal, as referred to in the

paragraphs above, the impact of the proposed development on Highways cannot be

fully assessed as inadequate information has been provided within the application.

Therefore, the Local Planning Authority is unable to determine if the proposal

complies with the Local Plan policies and NPPF in this regard. In terms of landscape
Application Reference Number: 24/01633/FULM Item No: 5¢



Page 94

character, the proposed development will result in a harmful impact, to which
significant weight is attributed and therefore conflicts with Local Plan Policy D2 and
NPPF.

5.51. The harm to the Green Belt by virtue of inappropriateness, harm to the
openness and the purposes of including land within it, weighs substantially against
the proposal. In addition, the harmful impact to the landscape character carries
significant weight against the proposal. In terms of other considerations, it is noted
that the demand for car parking spaces increases over the Christmas period,
however the lack of available car parking spaces is compounded by the temporary
uses such as the Winter Wonderland, that are erected on the car park during this
time. However, it is not considered that all other options have been explored, such
as removing/reducing the temporary uses; making greater efforts to adopt a more
robust Travel Plan which promotes and influences staff travel behaviours to ensure
that adequate car parking is available during these busy periods, or more robust
management of traffic and parking during peak periods and therefore without further
justification the need for further car parking above and beyond what exists within the
current Designer Outlet shopping complex is given little weight. Additionally, as
stated earlier in this report, it has not been demonstrated that the current situation is
not actively supressing demand and that the provision of additional parking will
simply release this supressed demand exacerbating the current issues.

5.52. Although a conclusion on the traffic, transportation and highways implications
cannot be reached given the submission of inadequate information, other
considerations have not been demonstrated to clearly outweigh the significant harm
identified to the Green Belt, which carries substantial weight and the significant harm
to landscape character. On this basis it is considered that very special
circumstances do not exist to justify this proposed development in the Green Belt
even for the temporary periods of usage proposed; the area itself would be surfaced
throughout the temporary period, albeit not actively used as a car park. As such the
proposals would still constitute inappropriate development in the Green Belt.

Public Sector Equalities Duty

5.53. Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 contains the Public Sector Equality Duty
(PSED) which requires public authorities, when exercising their functions, to have
due regard to the need to:

(a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is
prohibited by or under the Act;
(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and persons who do not share it;

Application Reference Number: 24/01633/FULM Item No: 5¢



Page 95

(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and persons who do not share it.

5.54. Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity between
persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not
share it involves having due regard, in particular, to the need to:

(a) remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic that are connected to that characteristic;

(b) take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share it;

(c) encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic to participate in
public life or in any other activity in which participation by such persons is
disproportionately low.

5.55. The PSED does not specify a particular substantive outcome, but ensures that
the decision made has been taken with “due regard” to its equality implications.

5.56. Officers have given due regard to the equality implications of the proposals in
making its recommendation. There is no indication or evidence (including from
consultation on this application) that any equality matters are raised that would
outweigh the material planning considerations.

6.0 CONCLUSION

6.1. The proposed development is inappropriate development in the Green Belt
and should not be approved unless very special circumstances exist. The NPPF at
paragraph 153 states that very special circumstances will not exist unless this
potential harm to the Green Belt by inappropriateness, and any other harm resulting
from the proposal is clearly outweighed by other considerations. In view of the
assessment above on whether very special circumstances exist, it is considered that
very special circumstances do not exist to justify the proposed development in the
Green Belt. As such the principle of the proposed development in this Green Belt
location is not acceptable as it conflicts with Policy GB1 of the Local Plan and with
National Green Belt Policy (paragraph 154) as contained within the National
Planning Policy Framework (NPPF).

6.2. The proposed development will not protect or enhance the landscape quality
and character of the Site or the public experience of it or the positive contribution it
makes to the special qualities of York’s historic character and setting. The proposed
development therefore conflicts with Local Plan Policy D2.

Application Reference Number: 24/01633/FULM Item No: 5¢



Page 96

6.3. In addition to the in principle reason to refuse this application as a result of the
harm to the Green Belt by virtue of inappropriateness, harm to the openness and the
purposes of including land within it, and the harm to the landscape character, the
submission of inadequate information on Highway and Access results in Local
Planning Authority not being able to fully assess these key issues and are also
considered to constitute a reason for refusal.

7.0 RECOMMENDATION: Refuse

1  The proposed development constitutes inappropriate development within the
Green Belt which by definition is harmful to the Green Belt. The proposal conflicts with
the essential characteristics of the Green Belt (i.e. its openness and permanence) and
the purposes of including land within the Green Belt by resulting in the sprawl of built
a built up area, encroachment of development into the countryside and would
therefore be harmful to the openness of the Green Belt, thus failing to preserve
character and setting of the City of York. The Local Planning Authority has concluded
that there are no other considerations that clearly outweigh the harm to the Green Belt
and other harms, when substantial weight is given to the harm to the Green Belt. Very
special circumstances do not exist to justify the proposal. The proposal is therefore
contrary to Policy GB1 of the York Local Plan and Section 13 of the National Planning
Policy Framework.

2  The submitted Transport Statement and Draft Travel Plan are considered to be
insufficient and inadequate to allow the Local Planning Authority and statutory
consultees to be able to properly consider and assess the traffic, transportation and
highways implications of the proposed development. The proposals are therefore
contrary to Policy T7 of the Local Plan and Paragraph 118 of the National Planning
Policy Framework.

3  The proposed development will not protect or enhance the landscape quality
and character of the Site, the public experience of it or the positive contribution it
makes to the special qualities of Yorks historic character and setting. The proposed
development therefore conflicts with Policy D2 of the York Local Plan and Paragraph
135 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

8.0 INFORMATIVES:

Notes to Applicant

1. STATEMENT OF THE COUNCIL'S POSITIVE AND PROACTIVE APPROACH
In considering the application, the Local Planning Authority has implemented the

Application Reference Number: 24/01633/FULM Item No: 5¢



Page 97

requirements set out within the National Planning Policy Framework (paragraph 39)
in seeking solutions to problems identified during the processing of the application.
The Local Planning Authority took the following steps in an attempt to achieve a
positive outcome:

Highlighted to the applicant areas where their information was lacking in detail.

However, the applicant/agent was unwilling to amend the application in line with these
suggestions, resulting in planning permission being refused for the reasons stated.

Contact details:

Case Officer:  Mark Baldry
Tel No: 01904 552877

Application Reference Number: 24/01633/FULM Item No: 5¢



This page is intentionally left blank



24/01633/FULM York Desaifer outlet St Nicholas Avenue

o

—

AcresFarm

.02- 1:3,307

6/27/2025, 11:03:30 AM 0 155 310 620 ft
| 1 | |
I T T T T
0 45 90 180 m

Development Management City of York Council West Offices Station Rise
© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 Ordnance Survey AC0000822532



This page is intentionally left blank



“—J"‘; CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Planning Committee B

24/01633/FULM
York Designer Outlet St Nicholas Avenue

Planning Committee B Meeting — 15 July 2025

TOT obed



Site Location Plan

DO NOT SCALE

PRELWRE DESEN & FIR GLWMCE PURPCES CHLT.|
WP ASEPTS W LRBLITY FOR Y DRMLAGE, Liss, ST
INCUFRED A5 & FEGLLT OF FELTH D THE INFORWATION PROADED I

THE DESR AFPRASA ESTMHIE.  THE APPRASAL CSTMATE WAG CE|

RN
WSPS REMSOIRAGLE SILL AN GARE, BAT UAP BE SUBIEET T2 JTHER
SUCH FIRUATION AND \ARUTINE OF YWHKH ISP & UWMMPE  THE
CESK APFRASAL ESTIWATE SHOULD NOT BE FELED UPON FOR TENDER
IR PRECURENENT PURPSER. I ADCURATE AWYE A IFIHLD OESE)
SHUAL BE GARRED CLIT AT THE APPROPRITE [ESCH STREE,
THERIFCRE, LEE OF THE INFORMATTH  ENTIFELY AT LR CAIW RIZC

PR | @E/aes | D | A ABDED

PH | 'BAmYXRs | D8 | FRST IRSE

REX WE B | DESCRPTHIN oK

§2 - FOR INFORMATION

\\\I)

20T abed

 Fira Shrmel, Werchestey, WH5454), LK
T dd 03461 .20) GO0
v
=g
ACHTIC:
[E—
]
YORK DESIGNER OUTLET
E:
BEABONAL CAR. PARK APPLICATICN
= RED LINE BOUNDARY

8814-5K-010 PD2

{©) WSP UK 4td




StiNicholas Ave

Persimmon,Homes @

Yorkshire,0ffice;

S8
’.

Planning Committee B Meeting — 15 July 2025




Proposed Access

0 g -8, by P, Dt

26.1m

Planning Committee B Meeting — 15 July 2025

5.5m

DO NOT SCALE

THE D

BXH NFDRUATHIN AND \SRITDHE OF WHICH =P B Ll
APPRYSL

THEREFIFE,

[THE PROVEXTUL PRELNRART CESEN E FIP GLIMHEE PURPCSES CHLT |
WEP ACGEPTS MO LBBLITT FOR: A DALAGE, 0S5, EXPENSES OR COST
INCUFFED A5 f FESLLT DF FELYIG DN THE INFIRWION FROADED N

APPRMS ESTWTE.  THE APPRASAL FSTRATE RA5 CERVED
A WTLRE CF THRD PARTY INFDRNIOK MO THE APPLICATION OF

MEP'S REMSORMILE SLL A GARE, AT LAY BE SLBJECT mEOTH"Elé

[ra2: (] ESTWATE SHIULD NOT BE RELED UPSH FOR TERDER

R PROCURENENT PURKSES IR ACCURATE AIWKE A [ETHLID
SHAAL HE GHRRED OUT AT THE PPROFRITE DESIGN STRGE,

., LEE DF THE INFORMATEN B ENTIRELY AT VLR DN RIS

m |m,.-w2m| ® |Fnsr|m

e | wE | w [ o

oK

52 - FOR INFORMATION

\\\I)

0T obed

5 Firak Sroel, erchoster, I 5464, LK
Tdd 0161 200 KOO0
wopmn
E
[ AMCHITICT:
YORK DESIGNER OUTLET
e
SEABONAL CAR PARK APPLICATION
. SITE ACOESS
1200 Ap H
MOECT N [ ] 2] TR
O | DR ALKGUET 2024
== =
281451012 POt

© WSP UK ktd




DO NCT SCALE

Page 105 ]

PROPCSED
SURFACE FINISHES
w
L3

m

- SEASONAL CAR PARK.

§2 - FOR INFORMATION

\\'\I)

B | oeron

T4 ) 101200000
W
LD4 DESIGN
YORK DESIGNER OLITLET EXPANSION

=
=
m
YDOWSP-XX-XX-DR-TP-0103
©-WSP UK Ltd

EXISTING GRASSCRETE TO BE RETAINED

[ Tesrsees [ on | e e s o

[Cror [ | o [ o e

=
=]

=

3]

5

=2
E
]
2
3
a
=
&
=]
=]
a2

MOT CONSTRUCTION

@
8
=
z
£
S
(=]
o
3
ta

SITE BOUNDARY
FILTER DRAIN

[
RIS L

SEE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT DRAWINGS FOR SURROUNDING

LANDSCAPE SURFACE FINISH LAYOUT

NOTES

KEY:

4 RRRRRRRZZT e
= = " (R Rt TR RRERT
Snesaan! e PSR Loes SRS
29t Jegoletetitoleletel RIS SoSaotolotototete!
SRS R PACHISIsTIeTatese PAISEeSrIctorss
CRIELIRRELS Toetaterel sfateloleteteledetels SROKEEREs
SRS S IO eI SN s oS SRS
0 SIS Sutetetetototetoreros S loseTotetetetets
Basteseta o tete e 2%, QQLRC, LR,
SRR LS Satetetes Bateerstytetotites ST
teSrietaletetotetils! soleletet Fadsiotiontoteletss Sesateteletetotele!
et Isee et R LR RIS
Sogeseietsintatetel fotetetss teSatotototatotete! Jesetrtolatetetsl
RIS SEAeterege QIS SRR
lodsteloteteletotetels SR Sutetetetesotetotete: sloreroretelotcteces
RS slaletetete Sttt tetatetes stestatutetetitetols
teSrietatetolets! Ptetotetet Jotutototetotetotel tetateteletotetete! LN
CRIE 20X QAL SEILLRK
IStetadeietitotel Eostotetoeses Eriotatelatstetielet parestatetotetoty’y
RRRLLRR KRR TR ISR N
batotetetetotetat Seintatetel batutetatetitetete bosetetatotetols!
LRI R LI I O HE I S
BoaSsetotete! asitetats Sotetatetotitotsuts! i etesatetatytotet o
X000 geretetel taolatoletololetel tesaletololotets!
QSRS Syoesetes Seasetatrostatete! QS RCEL
IOeceetatete’ SO TeeTsetetatesetete! SRR N
plosresatetes R Eetetielststetitelst pErgrestatetisecst
BSreseies I BStaetatetetesess! SRR =
otetutototoretute! SoTetotetels Suteteletototetotele detaselotetototetesyt =
SRR Sreasriotats Eeietatetatrtotalets AL
sy e SRR SR 5
Jeselatetetitotatotet SeSstetitatototetsl egtelesetatotite! sotatoletiletetel -
IR 2R SRS SREELRILS
LRI, 25505 QLA SRR
fotetetslatetots! Iooteteretetetstotel Sitetrietatototole
R s R N
Iototetetetetutetet Jatelotitntateletss NS
=
posiasatesat SR
Eatogetatetyt Sitetsiotatototote
(O ICH KOOI $10-0.0.40 ¢ 0 0 0.
SRS 255 RS A AL teess:
et RSB0 s ssenses e teesascion !
pletsssioreled ejelele pjoretsteliletelets 5005058 o7
Tslaetetedd 25 RIS 255 |
dasisetatetal e, bepiaeiatstateses LR
otatotety! Fatoetotetatolor dpsetatetatitetitely P
S st S e
oSotelets Satetatetototetotets Eetotetatotetetstelsl jres]
o paa o
ORI RIS
QLS SSeOSErctoatsters
poeTeeetas ety SGRLHER (V)
S SR s oS >
e e e i
.
SRR LRI SRR
Aottt tets Eatat st bototstotitetotitel balotetettitetetsd
Jesolutetetstotele Jegelstetitotototets! teletaletototetele! fafeletotetorotete!
Lok s s B
RRRRELIRL ] RIS e
Jeintatetetiletstel Eantatetets! bitetslotatototetel Rstetstatetatotitots
e R IR e e
SeItuteratet B Tertetet XL TCLLD TS :
H KRR KRS SEERIEL
i oSegetlotelss Jotetalotstetstelets slotols
[RSsCer s S
loseietesotetotetored otateleteietatelot
[R5 RS QCRGEICRET
pefoleistetetetriets pSeletitatetotetele! 0050
[R5 SRR SRR
Fotelotetstotatotets! Saoutatoletetels! SSsgetede!
R R0R S 2RI SR O
oSeteletetoreiotesel 5 SO
Eotetetetstolitatstel abotetetetotetats%s O
etoterstatetorers ututoletetotolotete!
seetatet [0S Iodotetetatesetstesss
[sgetatoletateletets; Sofotetodetetetelelss asetotetatotolorss el
Feasasetesisetatess! Saotsresratesssses asrsssietatotasess
Eogelatetelotitotet 3tetiter etetit ieiateletotitetobotes
FodiSetetelelySedeses PLeIORRHRHIK St etattetetetel -
ietatetetodetototel atatetotetatototetst Matotetetetatotelel .=
[ SO e e o
Srie s
elstatstateteiels KRR d
0|
o

e R L R
R e
Ty P T ot Tttt
RS0 e e oy ) ) Ao SIS A SIS ASHASISY
n et g et ettt e ettt et ettt tute e tatateto e tatetedatatetoteds e e

< Q'0...0"."0...Q"."0.’.Q".’."‘.’."’."‘.’."’.‘ 0...0’0”."0")’.’.’r’

.. .’."‘.".‘.‘Q ..‘..’..".""...‘."."v.P.»....l’ —

I R S I

TS

R
e SO ettt

2025

Surfacing and Site
Layout Plan



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interest
	3 Minutes
	Minutes

	5a RSPCA, Landing Lane, York, YO26 4RH [24/00919/FULM]
	RSPCA, Landing Lane, York, YO26 4RH [24/00919/FULM] Plan
	RSPCA, Landing Lane, York, YO26 4RH [24/00919/FULM] Presentation
	Slide 1: Planning Committee B 
	Slide 2
	Slide 3
	Slide 4
	Slide 5
	Slide 6
	Slide 7
	Slide 8


	5b 1 Museum Street, York, YO1 7DT  [25/00532/LBC]
	1 Museum Street, York, YO1 7DT  [25/00532/LBC] Plan
	1 Museum Street, York, YO1 7DT  [25/00532/LBC] Presentation
	Slide 1: Planning Committee B 
	Slide 2
	Slide 3
	Slide 4
	Slide 5
	Slide 6
	Slide 7
	Slide 8
	Slide 9
	Slide 10
	Slide 11
	Slide 12
	Slide 13
	Slide 14
	Slide 15
	Slide 16
	Slide 17
	Slide 18
	Slide 19
	Slide 20
	Slide 21
	Slide 22


	5c York Designer Outlet, St Nicholas Avenue, York, YO19 4TA [24/01633/FULM]
	York Designer Outlet, St Nicholas Avenue, York, YO19 4TA [24/01633/FULM] Plan
	York Designer Outlet, St Nicholas Avenue, York, YO19 4TA [24/01633/FULM] Presentation
	Slide 1: Planning Committee B 
	Slide 2
	Slide 3
	Slide 4
	Slide 5



